Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Owen Griffiths

Extension

43313

E Mail

Owen.griffiths@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 21 April 2022 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of democratic
meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected Members and Officers who
participate. Risk assessments are undertaken in advance of each meeting, and are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Social distancing measures will be in place throughout the meeting, however it is
important that you do not attend the meeting if you or anyone in your household are required to selfisolate due to receiving a positive COVID-19 test result, having symptoms of COVID-19, or having
been told that you have been in contact with someone who has tested positive for COVID-19. For
the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed online.
The livestream can be accessed here:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZCvPUsJ0LwMJ9ukDsGf0Hw
For health and safety reasons and in accordance with our risk assessment, members of the public
are asked to follow the meeting via this method rather than attending in person. If you are unable to
access the meeting this way, please contact us so that we can explore whether any safe alternative
option is possible. The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream.

Agenda
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation
procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2022

4

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 4)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

5

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR
MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

6

Draft Annual Governance Statement

7

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress report 2021/22

(Pages 29 - 44)

8

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Programmes 2022/23

(Pages 45 - 46)

9

Safer Ryedale Progress with Delivering the Community Safety Partnership
Strategy
(Pages 47 - 76)

10

Standards Complaints Overview and Annual Report

(Pages 5 - 28)

Report to Follow
PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

11

External Auditors Annual Report

12

O&S Forward Plan

13

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

(Pages 77 - 106)
(Pages 107 - 110)

Agenda Item 3
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Thursday 24 March 2022
Present
Councillors King, Middleton (Chair), Oxley, Raine, Riby and Wass (Vice-Chair)
In Attendance
Alan Bardet, Elizabeth Heath, Anton Hodge and Margaret Wallace

Minutes
88

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Cllr Garbutt Moore.

89

Minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2022

Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting held on 10
February 2022 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Voting Record
Unanimous

90

Urgent Business
There was no urgent business.

91

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

92

CIPFA Financial Management Code
Decision
That the Committee notes the work undertaken to enhance compliance with
the CIPFA FM Code and that future reports will set out progress against any
further actions stated.
Voting Record
Unanimous

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 24 March 2022

Due to technical issues the Monitoring Officer left the meeting during this item.
93

Risk Management Update
Decision
That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the contents of this report
and feeds back any comments on the format and details of the Corporate Risk
Register.
Voting Record
Unanimous
Cllr King left the meeting during this item.

94

Decisions from other Committees
The Committee received the Minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee held
on 17 March 2022.

95

O&S Forward Plan
The Committee received the forward plan.
It was noted that the ‘Progress on the Equalities Action Plan’ report will now be
presented to the committee on 23 June 2022.

96

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There being no other business, the meeting closed at 7:15pm

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 24 March 2022

Agenda Item 6

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents an early draft of the Annual Governance Statement. The
Committee is asked to note the Statement and to comment on it ahead of any changes
before inclusion in the draft accounts (likely to be published in June). Committee will
also have a chance to look at a further updated version before it is signed off as part
of the Annual Accounts later in the year.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the draft Annual Governance Statement
as presented and feeds back any comments for consideration in the final statement to
the s151 Officer.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To include feedback from the Committee ahead of production of the final Statement.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no
system of control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, a number
of issues have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous
improvement in the Governance Framework.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council is required by regulations to prepare and publish an Annual Governance

Page 5
OFFICIAL

Statement
6.0

REPORT CONTENTS

6.1

The draft Annual Governance Statement is attached to this report as Appendix 1.

6.2

This sets out the framework within which financial control and corporate governance is
managed and reviewed by the Council. It also reports on key issues identified and any
relevant proposed actions.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

b)

Legal
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

c)

Other (Climate Change, Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Crime & Disorder)
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Page 6
OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

Ryedale District Council
1st Draft of the Annual Governance Statement 2021/22
Scope of Responsibility
Ryedale District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The
Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall
responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including
arrangements for the management of risk.
This statement is prepared with consideration to the CIPFA Application of the Good
Governance Framework 2020/21 (CIPFA Bulletin 06). That statement notes that:
“The preparation and publication of an annual governance statement in accordance with
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) would fulfil the
statutory requirements across the UK for a local authority to conduct a review at least once
in each financial year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a
statement reporting on the review with its statement of accounts. In England the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 stipulate that the annual governance statement must be
“prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to accounts”. Therefore, a local
authority in England shall provide this statement in accordance with Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) and this section of the Code”.
Ryedale’s Annual Governance Statement has been prepared alongside consideration of the
core principles and sub-principles of good governance as set out in that Framework.

Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by
which the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and is
accountable to the community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the
Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify, prioritise
and manage the risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.
The governance framework has been in place at Ryedale District Council for the year ended
31 March 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts.

1

Page 7
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and
managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The
Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focused upon its corporate priorities
and seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Corporate
Plan. To improve the effectiveness of this, the Council built on the Health Checks
commissioned in 2018 and 2019 by implementing action plans and strengthening capacity in
areas described below. Further reviews - such as by the Society for innovation, technology
and modernisation SOCITM - have been undertaken in a spirit of continuous improvement
and a Council Plan 2020-24 is in place.
The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, such as
standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the barriers to
achieving the Council’s objectives.

Members and senior officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of the Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal. This
is led by the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer, both appointed in 2018, in conjunction
with the Council’s Programme Directors, Monitoring Officer/Head of Governance and the
Head of HR. Through their Strategic Management Board meetings, they have
commissioned and taken action to address governance related issues, and briefed relevant
Committees for consideration. Overview and Scrutiny have also pursued a robust approach
to strengthening governance arrangements in key areas such as risk management. A review
of capacity in Corporate Governance has also taken place, with additional resources
invested to ensure that necessary levels of resourcing are in place.
The Council has designed systems and processes to regulate, monitor and control its
activities in order to achieve its vision and objectives.

The key elements of the Council’s Governance Framework are as follows:

The Council’s key priorities during 2021/22 were reflected in its Council Plan 202024, which was approved by Full Council in September 2020. This sets out the
following key aims:
o Support strong, inclusive and attractive communities
o Harness Ryedale's unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs
o Create an environment that is sustainable, safe and clean
o Develop our organisation as an innovative, enterprising Council



The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made, and
the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are lawful, efficient, transparent
and accountable to local people. This incorporates the Members’ Code of Conduct
and a number of other locally agreed codes and protocols.



The Council’s budget and policy framework is set by the full Council. The Policy and
Resources Committee has delegated authority to operate and make decisions within
the framework. Some powers are delegated to senior officers.



In addition to the Policy and Resources Committee there are two specific regulatory
committees for Licensing and Planning. These have independent powers within their
legislative framework. Each of these acts within defined terms of reference agreed by
the full Council.
2

Page 8
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1



Throughout 2021/22 Council committee meetings were held physically with officers
and other participants (such as External Auditors) able to join through MS Teams.
They have been broadcast to be able to be viewed by members of the public.



The Overview and Scrutiny Committee acting as a Corporate Governance Standards
Committee has monitored standards of conduct of Members and advised the Council
on probity issues. Entries made in the Register of Members’ Interests were reviewed
by the Monitoring Officer.



Council decisions are subject to review by the Council’s Scrutiny function, which has
the ability to call-in and review decisions and also to contribute to the development of
policy.



The committee management system (modern.gov) enables the recording, tracking
and monitoring of committee agenda, minutes, reports and decision records.



Council meetings are accessible for the public except when exempt or confidential
matters are being disclosed. During 2021/22 this has been accomplished by
introducing Remote Meeting Rules within the Constitution and broadcasting remote
meetings, as well as making them available to view afterwards on YouTube. The
public have an opportunity to participate in some of the meetings. This has been
facilitated by initially asking people to provide questions in advance of the meeting
and latterly by providing access to the remote meeting via MSTeams. Since the
ending of legislation permitting remote meetings on 7th May 2021 the Council has
facilitated face to face Covid secure council meetings. Meetings are streamed live
using MSTeams and YouTube. They continue to be open to the public.



A number of areas are delegated to officers for the purposes of decision-making;
however, limits on the exercise of delegation are laid down in the Council’s
Constitution. The Council also has a specific delegation scheme for Planning which is
published on the website.



The Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance



The Council has a Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy, covering 2020-24 and a
Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy, which are reviewed annually. A revised
strategy and policy were approved by Overview and Scrutiny (acting as Audit)
Committee in January 2021. The Council also has separate Speak Out and Anti
Money Laundering Policies. The Council employs Veritau to provide a counter fraud
service.



The Chief Executive post is also an Assistant Chief Executive at North Yorkshire
County Council (NYCC). The two councils are working together to support
efficiencies and deliver improved services through effective partnership working.



The Head of Corporate Governance also acts as the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
The appointment of a Monitoring Officer is required in accordance with Section 5 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It is the function of the Monitoring
Officer to report to Members upon any contravention of any enactment or rule of law
or any maladministration by the Authority. The Monitoring Officer also has
responsibilities relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct.



The Chief Finance Officer (s151) (a joint role employed by NYCC where the
3

Page 9
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
postholder is an Assistant Director for Strategic Resources) is the officer with
statutory responsibility for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs,
in accordance with the Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. In compliance
with CIPFA’s “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government”, Ryedale is in full compliance as the Chief Officer (s151) is a member
of the Strategic Management Board.


Both the Statutory Officers referred to above have unfettered access to information,
to the Chief Executive and to Members of the Council in order that they can
discharge their responsibilities effectively. The functions of these Officers and their
roles are clearly set out in the Council’s Constitution.



Financial sustainability is a key risk for the Council and a robust financial
management framework is fundamental to managing and mitigating that risk. It
comprises:
o
o

o

o
o
o
o
o

Financial and Contract Procedure Rules as part of the Constitution;
A Financial Strategy which provides the framework for financial planning –
projecting high level resources and spending over 10 years, it identifies the
short, medium and long term financial issues the Council is dealing with and
its approach to managing reserves;
Medium-term financial planning using a three-year cycle, updated annually, to
align resources to corporate priorities. Due to the impact of Covid-19 a
revised budget and medium term financial strategy was approved by the
Council in September 2020.
Service and financial planning integrated within the corporate performance
management cycle and linked to the Council’s corporate objectives;
Annual budget process involving scrutiny and challenge;
Quarterly monitoring by management of revenue and capital budgets – with
regular reports to Policy and Resources Committee;
Production annually of a Statement of Accounts compliant with the
requirements of local authority accounting practice;
Compliance with requirements established by CIPFA.



Corporate programme, which is produced with explicit goals and associated
performance targets related to the delivery of the Council Plan 2020-2024 in order to
ensure that achievement of performance is measurable;



The Council’s staff performance approach links personal objectives directly to the
corporate programme and ultimately to the Council Plan 2020-2024;



Regular reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on complaints and
compliments



The Council maintains a professional relationship with Grant Thornton, the body
responsible for the external audit of the Council. Regular review meetings are held
with the Chief Executive and s151 Officer and reports presented to Overview and
Scrutiny in its role as Audit Committee.



Recruitment and selection procedures are based on recognised good practice and all
staff posts have a formal job description and competency-based person specification.
Services are delivered and managed by staff with the necessary knowledge and
4

Page 10
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
expertise with training needs identified via the formal appraisal process


Pay is governed by a Pay Policy considered and approved annually by Council.



A revised approach to managing risk has been adopted in recent years.
o This has led to an overhaul of the Corporate Risk Register and the
development of Service Risk Registers. Advice and guidance has been
provided by Veritau and in some cases by North Yorkshire County Council.
This work has been recognised and endorsed by members who see it as an
important part of the Council’s improvement strategy. As part of that, an
update on Risk Management, including the Corporate Risk Register, is
presented to Audit Committee twice a year.
o A Risk Management guidance document has been developed for key staff
along with risk management training;
o The maintenance of the Corporate Risk Register comprising risks for the
Council as a whole, assigned to designated officers, with appropriate countermeasures and an action plan established for each key risk;
o As well as presentation of this to Committee, Strategic Management Board
also keeps the corporate risk management arrangements under review and
examine and challenge this and service risk registers
o Management and Internal Audit of a risk-based approach in the preparation
and delivery of the audit plan;
o Officers of the Council are required to consider risk management issues when
submitting reports to Committees and Council for consideration by Members.
This includes managing risks around equalities, safeguarding and health and
safety.



The Council has established a Corporate Information Governance Group (CIGG) in
order to address the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
which came into effect on 25th May 2018. The Council’s Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO) is the Head of Corporate Governance. The CIGG includes
representatives from Veritau, who have been engaged as the Council’s Data
Protection Officer (DPO), a requirement of the GDPR. Veritau provide regular
updates to the Audit Committee.



The maintenance of an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit is a
requirement of the Accounts & Audit Regulations. Internal Audit is provided by
Veritau North Yorkshire Ltd. (VNY), which is part of the Veritau group. The work of
Internal Audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. In accordance with these standards Internal
Audit is required to prepare an audit plan on at least an annual basis.



Internal Audit examines and evaluates the adequacy of the Council’s system of
internal controls as a contribution to ensuring that resources are used in an
economical, efficient and effective manner. Internal Audit is an independent and
objective appraisal function established by the Council for reviewing the system of
internal control.



The audit plan is informed by the Council’s main strategic risks. This is intended to
ensure limited audit resources are prioritised towards those systems which are
considered to be the most risky and/or which contribute the most to the achievement
of the Council’s priorities and objectives.



The Council seeks to ensure resources are utilised in the most economic, effective
5

Page 11
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
and efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. It aims to achieve this
by a variety of means including the following:
o
o
o

Service/process transformation and efficiency reviews;
Working with partners;
External and Internal Audit feedback.

Review of Effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by:




the Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by Veritau North Yorkshire;
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and
inspectorates;
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee review that the elements of the governance
framework are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the principles. They
also reviewed the system of internal audit and concluded it was effective and
remained a key source of assurance for the Council in 2021/22.

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided challenge and has
monitored the Council’s policies and performance on an ongoing basis. The Members of
O&S have worked together, adopting a non-political approach, developing and using their
knowledge and expertise, and that of others to the best effect. An evidence-based approach
to the O&S work has been instrumental in achieving good results. Covid impacted on the
Committee’s work, but it did receive a report from Everyone Active on delivery of the leisure
contract and reviewed progress on implementation of the Climate Change Action Plan.
In addition to receiving regular reports on Treasury Management, Risk and Complaints, the
Committee supported the Head of Corporate Governance’s proposals for two standards
sessions to be delivered in 2021. These were



A workshop on member-officer relations (June 2021), and
LGA code of conduct sessions on 20 and 25 October.

The Committee also agreed that scoping reports be drawn up for the following topics:




Affordable Housing – this has been put on hold due to capacity
Review of Enforcement – this has not been taken forward
Performance Appraisal System – completed

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also received reports on:







A new Model Code of Conduct, which it recommended for approval to Council
Standards Training
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Report and Annual Letter
Update on Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)
Safer Ryedale and the Community Safety Plan
CIPFA Financial Management Code
6

Page 12
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1












Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report
Internal audit and Counter Fraud Work Programme
Internal audit and Counter Fraud Governance Plan
Everyone Active Annual Report
Delivering the Council Plan - Key Performance Indicators for O&S Review
Health and Safety Annual Report
External Audit - Interim Audit and Progress Report
2020-21 Audit Findings (ISA260) Report
External Audit Plan
Equalities Action Plan
Safeguarding?

The Council is dedicated to ensuring that its resources are utilised in the most effective and
efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. Work has been undertaken
during the year to ensure members were fully informed of, and involved in, shaping the
budget strategy ahead of key meetings in February 2022. During the autumn of 2021,
discussion and engagement took place with elected members on priorities for the remaining
lifetime of the Council. Two workshops were held in October and a follow-up prioritisation
exercise was also carried out.
New financial monitoring arrangements introduced part way through 2018/19 have been and
were in place for the full financial year, giving outturn estimates to members on a quarterly
basis which can now be seen as being consistent with the final actual outturn position.
These include information and projections on costs arising from the pandemic and impact on
reserves
To improve the Council’s effectiveness of this, capacity and additional support is now in
place in services such as Health and Safety, Corporate Governance and Finance, IT,
Communications, Transformation, Legal and Procurement. Additional support for Strategy
and Performance was implemented in 2021/22 and this has enabled greater scrutiny of the
Council’s Performance with regular reports now coming to Council.
Based on the assurance work undertaken by Internal Audit, the Head of Internal Audit
(Veritau) has provided an opinion on the adequacy of the control environment which
concluded that this gave reasonable assurance and also recognised that the Council has
made good progress in the last few years to improve its governance arrangements.
Key systems were audited in 2021/22 and a number of audit reports and other pieces of
work were provided to management and the O&S Committee.
In January 2022 the Council’s external auditors (Grant Thornton) provided the Council with
an unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual Audit and Inspection
letter. We are yet to receive the results of their Value for Money audit.
A new Council Plan was adopted in September 2020; the corporate programme to deliver
this, and its underpinning performance framework is ongoing The Council’s People and
Culture Plan and Council Plan, details key milestones and measures for success relating to
organisational development.

7

Page 13
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
Coronavirus
There has continued to be a significant impact on Council services of the coronavirus
pandemic in 2021/22. Despite the challenges, the Council has maintained consistent
essential services for residents, whilst adapting to provide alternative virtual services
wherever possible.
Meetings follow government guidance on making these Covid secure and comply with
relevant legislation.
Returns to MHCLG/DLUHC and DHSC and a financial tracker were maintained throughout
this period and the financial impact has been reported to members continuously.

Key Issues
No system of governance or internal control can provide absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance.
In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, a number of issues
have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the
Governance Framework. The aim is to address these issues during the 2022/23 financial
year, by way of an action plan for improving the governance framework and system of
internal control. This will be subject to monitoring by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
The most significant issues for the Council to address during 2022/23 will be those resulting
from the residual impacts of the pandemic, Local Government Reorganisation (LGR), the
invasion of Ukraine and escalating costs of living.
On 21 July 2021, the Government announced that the county, district and borough councils
in North Yorkshire will be replaced by a new unitary council. It is expected that the new
council will begin to operate on 1 April 2023. This therefore means that the 2022/23 budget
for Ryedale District Council will be its last.
This clearly has implications for the period covered by the existing Financial Strategy and
removes the need for a budget beyond the next financial year. However the council is
obligated to hand over its affairs to the new organisation in the best state it can and this
means continuing to tackle known budgetary issues.
The financial implications of the LGR are beginning to be understood, including the use of
local-agreed protocols on spending and sharing financial information.

8

Page 14
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
Key Issues
In the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement, seven key issues were identified. All of these ongoing and will be continued (but
amended) in the new version.
This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of control can provide absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, a number of issues have
been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to address
these weaknesses during the 2022/23 financial year, by way of an action plan for improving the governance framework and system of
internal control. This will be subject to monitoring by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
1. Financial Sustainability

Page 15

Accountable
Officer:
Challenge

s151 Officer
On-going and future changes to the Council’s financial framework including several changes to national and local
funding regimes will increase the financial pressure on the Council and risk profile.
This needs to be matched with effective financial management on the part of members and officers.
This Control Issue was revised in 2020/21 to include dealing with the ongoing impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic. As a
result of our monitoring we correctly identified at an early stage that resources from central government did not cover the
full costs to Ryedale District Council of the pandemic.

Actions

The agreed Medium Term Financial Strategy of the Council highlights the expected need to make future savings. This
informs the budget process for future years for the new North Yorkshire Council
The s151 Officer considers the risk as part of the closure of accounts including the need to make appropriate provisions
and reserves at the year-end.

9
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
Ensure effective budget management is in operation across the Council, including accurate data and forecasting and
reporting to members. Ensure that members are kept aware of all relevant financial information to assist in budget
setting in future years.
The MTFS will also take into account the ongoing impact of the Coronavirus pandemic (see below).
The financial impact of LGR will be a major feature in 2022/23. The LGR decision and other agreements did not affect
the requirement on Ryedale District Council to set a legal budget for 2022/23 that addresses the Council’s aims and
objectives. There will also be a direct cost to the Council related to the implementation of LGR and some funding has
been set aside to cover this. Staff will also be expected to contribute to the transformation to the new council and
therefore this could impact on capacity.
Progress Report

This is a Key Issue which has formed part of the AGS for a number of years, and it is expected that this will continue to
be the case.

Page 16

A revised Financial Strategy was approved by Council in February 2022 and members were consulted during the
preparation of the budget through reports and briefings.
Financial monitoring is now fully in place and has explicitly included the impact of COVID since 2020/21. This will
continue in 2022/23 and we will continue to complete a monthly tracker which can be submitted to central government.
Through this we will continue to lobby for additional costs that cannot be funded by the council.
Reviews on additional services are undertaken to ensure that required capacity is funded and resources managed
effectively; this remains critical as the impact of Covid 19 continues to impact on service demand in key areas of
business. This increased demand is not anticipated as lessening during 2022/23.
A budget for Local Government Reorganisation was agreed by Full Council so that Ryedale can play its part in shaping
the new council for North Yorkshire. Costs are being monitored and will be reported as part of budgeting processes.
The financial impact of Local Government Review will require careful consideration with regard to use of resources and
financial impact as will ongoing monitoring of impact of supply chain disruption and inflationary risks.
The revised MTFS will be monitored during 2022/23 to ensure that members of RDC and of the new North Yorkshire
Council are aware of the existing financial pressures and opportunities in Ryedale.

10
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
A Financial Protocol is in place to ensure that any decisions taken by Ryedale which impact on the new council are
transparent.
Improved procurement support has led to the monitoring of a forward procurement plan and the correct governance
around contract management. Again this is being aligned to the future operation of North Yorkshire Council.

Page 17
11
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
2. Waste and Recycling Review
Accountable
Officer:
Challenge
Actions

Head of Waste and Environmental Services.
To ensure that RDC achieves efficient and effective waste and recycling collection.
Implementation of new optimised household waste and recycling collections linked to new recycling vehicles and waste
transfer station.
A piece of work on route optimisation will be completed.
Delivery programme of new recycling vehicle completed

Progress Report

This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS and continues to be an area of focus driven by organisational
need and national policy change.

Page 18

Significant operational demands were faced during 2020/21 as residents were spending more time at home due to the
Covid lockdown periods. This resulted in unprecedented variations in tonnages presented for collection and operational
collections were changed to manage the completion of existing rounds with minimal disruption to household waste and
recycling services.
The new recycling vehicle became operational during 2021/22 following significant vehicle modifications.
The implementation of the new optimised household waste and recycling collection rounds has been rescheduled later in
2021/22 (subject to Covid policy directives) now that this new vehicle is in service and given that the country is now
emerging from restrictions.
In July 2021 DEFRA consulted on a series of proposals on consistency of collections which included a proposal to
introduce free garden waste collections by local authorities from 2023/24 and indicated that any increase costs will be
covered by new burdens funding.
The Environment Act 2021 received Royal Assent on the 9 November 2021 and will require all waste collection
authorities in England to arrange for the separate collection of garden waste for recycling or composting. It is expected
that the outcome of the DEFRA consultations on the consistency of collections will mandate free garden waste
collections from 2023/24.
12
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1

These factors will all be taken into account when moving forward.
There is ring-fenced investment in place to facilitate this including a new vehicle replacement programme, which was
approved as part of the capital programme for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25, and a streetscene transformation capacity
funding which was agreed as part of the 2021/22 revenue budget.

Page 19
13
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
3. The Local Plan

Accountable
Officer:
Challenge

Actions

Programme Director for Place and Resources
Planning Services Manager
The Local Plan requires review and adoption. This Project is ongoing, beginning in 2020/21 and will continue until
adoption. This is estimated to be summer 2023 based on members’ current agreements to a limited review of the Plan
taking place. Local Government Reform is directing the timeframe for publication of the plan with a need for RDC to
agree the publication version prior to vesting day.
Review of the development plan as the Local Plan Strategy was seven years old when this was first developed.

Page 20

This will highlight expected levels of development that will take place in the District and will set out the specific types of
new development required to meet Ryedale’s needs. It will also set out the council’s approach to responding to climate
change in terms of policies which will be applied to a range of new developments.
Progress Report

This has been highlighted as a Key Issue since the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20).
The Sites Document was formally adopted on 29 June 2019 as scheduled.
Some delay in early stages of the review by the Local Plan Working Party (LPWP) arising from the Covid outbreak and
capacity in the officer team. Capacity has been addressed and a timetable for future meetings has also been
established. Formal adoption of the review is likely to be July 2023 as set out in the Local Development Scheme (subject
to the outcome of the examination and LGR). It should also be noted that this is an area of significant policy interest at a
national level, and this may have a bearing on the overall timetable.
The target dates for the plan have been agreed by members who also agreed that there would be a limited review of the
plan in order to hit the submission for examination targets dates in advance of any local government restructure.
Member approved the new Local Development Scheme in February 2021 and the Council’s Statement of Community
Involvement was approved in March 2021.
Work on the collation of evidence to inform initial public consultation and a Call for Sites consultation which ended on 6
July 2021.
14
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1

Work on site assessment is on-going as is consultation on the sites which will continue to the point that the District
Council agrees a version of the plan for publication prior to the new North Yorkshire Council coming into being. The
publication of the plan at this time will require a revision to the Local Development Scheme. (scheduled for June 2022)
Development of the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping report is close to being completed. (April 2022)
A Consultation on the Distribution of Development was commenced in November 2021 and this was extended due to
email issues (now resolved).
Members of the Local Plan Working Party are now meeting bi-monthly to discuss various elements:
 Spatial Approach
 Sites
 Policy choices

Page 21

A Key decisions paper is to be taken to Policy and Resources in June 2022 which will give Officers the ability to direct
site assessment work.
Additional consultancy support is being commissioned to provide a series of technical evidence documents; critical friend
support, and wider technical consultancy support to support Officers and Members and drive progress.

15
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
4. Resilience and Capacity
Accountable
Officer:
Challenge

Head of HR
To ensure sufficient capacity to enable the Council to carry out strategic and/or operational objectives.
This also includes HR policies and procedures - review and approval, including staffing aspects of Equality and Diversity.

Actions

Continuous review of the new arrangements now in place.
HR policies should be fit for purpose. Documents should grow and adapt with an organisation. Policy review and revision
is a crucial part of an effective policy and procedure management plan.

Page 22

Progress Report

Action plan towards developing level for the Equality Framework for Local Government with respect to staffing matters.
This was initially highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20). The Action was that actions from
a comprehensive Health Check of HR were followed up and implemented.
Capacity and additional support has been put in place in services such as Health and Safety, Enforcement, Planning &
Regulatory Services, Corporate Governance, Finance, IT, Communications, Programme Management, Legal,
Revenues and Benefits and Procurement. Additional support for Strategy and Performance was planned for
implementation in 2020/21, but was delayed by the need to prioritise Covid-19. This is now in place (June 2021).
15 HR policies have now been reviewed and either approved by Council or in the process of gaining approval. In its final
year, any further reviews and changes will be restricted to any changes required by law.
Additional resources were secured during the Covid-19 pandemic to support key areas of the business to function e.g.
customer services advisors. However this is constantly under review and pressures in capacity are exacerbated by the
work that has been undertaken and is likely to increase on LGR. These capacity pressures will continue to be reviewed
during 2022/23 and brought to members’ attention where additional capacity is required. This was highlighted in the
Financial Strategy presented to Full Council in February 2022 and Council agreed to set aside funding in the budget to
assist with this.

16
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
5. Economic Recovery and Growth
Accountable
Officers

Programme Director - Economic Development.
Head of Customer Services and Communities.

Challenge
Actions

Economic Recovery and Growth.
Delivering a strong, sustainable economy will need to now take account of the recovery required post-Covid to address
the long-term, sustainable economic success of the district. This includes addressing the needs of those who are
experiencing poverty and severely reduced income as a consequence of the pandemic.
Submission of York/North Yorkshire devolution asks to Government were agreed by Elected Members. Submission has
occurred and councils across York and North Yorkshire are continuing to ask for a negotiation process with Government
to begin.

Page 23

A plan for leaving the European Union is also critical given the impact this may have on many businesses. Component
parts of the proposed devolution deal relating to thriving businesses, strong job opportunities, robust infrastructure, and
strong culture, tourism and low carbon sectors, are aiming to be progressed through bids into new Government funding
tranches (e.g. Community Renewal Funding, Levelling Up) that are replacing EU funding tranches.
Inclusive growth is also key to mitigate the increasing levels of poverty that are arising from the consequences of Covid 19. This includes a focus on partnership initiatives with other key bodies including Town and Parish Councils, NYCC and
the voluntary and community sector.
Progress Report

This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS but was revised last year to take account of the recovery
required post-COVID
Examples of Economic Development work carried out in 2020/21 include
 the provision of free public wifi in the market towns of Malton, Pickering and Helmsley
 securing external funding from the Local Growth Fund to undertake initial feasibility work on a number of projects
including a Ryedale Business Centre,
 further work on the installation of additional EV charging points throughout Ryedale including in RDC car parks,
at Ryedale House and at the RDC Depot on Showfield Lane, Malton.

17
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
In addition to this, during the past two years, a key focus was on providing immediate support to businesses. This
included handling increased service demands and direct action to enable businesses to trade safely (e.g. environmental
health, community officer roles in Covid secure management, increased benefits claims and housing applications).
Grants to business and individuals have been made as quickly and effectively as possible to ease distress and protect
lives and livelihoods (e.g. self-isolation, a variety of business grants).
The Council’s actions to support economic recovery are aligned to the Council Plan and have also been progressed as
part of the regional Local Resilience Forum arrangements.
Ryedale is also playing a key role in the management of poverty across York and North Yorkshire, with the Head of
Customer Services and Communities acting as the Deputy Chair.

Page 24

Examples of Economic Development work carried out in 2021/22 include:
 Successful delivery of a further round of the Additional Restrictions Grant scheme to support businesses suffering
the impacts of the Omicron variant.
 Design and delivery of a number of new and existing RDC grant schemes including Small Arts Grants, RDC Arts
Commissions, Small Business Grant and the Community EV Charging Grant Scheme.
 Completing the legal and financial processes required to allow for the commencement of the third phase of the
Thornton Road Industrial Park in Pickering
 Securing £183,500 for up to six new Changing Spaces facilities across Ryedale to be delivered over the next two
financial years in partnership with the North York Moors National Park Authority and Forestry England.
 Supported the Milton Rooms Committee with the delivery of a £500,000 investment contribution by RDC
 Held a successful Jobs Fair at Ryedale House in November 2021
In addition to the above and all other work undertaken by the team, the Local Government Reorganisation process has
latterly become a more significant aspect of work, with Officers regularly participating across two major work streams –
Economic Development and Culture, Leisure and Sport.
Discussions on devolution have now begun and the AGS will be updated to cover these as appropriate.

18
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
6. Climate Change

Accountable
Officers

Programme Director - Economic Development.

Challenge

Delivering the Climate Change Action Plan to ensure that Ryedale District Council can contribute towards the reduction
in global temperature rise.
Progressing Action Plan delivery through numerous projects which include operations, partnerships with public, private,
voluntary sectors and Ryedale Environmental sectors and residents, building and assets, transport and vehicles.

Actions

Progress Report

This continues to be highlighted as a Key Issue and specifically to review and enact the Action Plan. This has been done
and taken into account in the update below.
Agreed three-year revenue budget in place to support delivery. Climate Change Officer in place from Nov 2021.

Page 25

Current achievements include:










delivery of LED street lighting across Malton and Norton (264 lamps, equating to a CO 2 saving of 36 tonnes per
year).
delivery of 20 fast-charging units (car parks) and 10 RDC workplace units.
delivery of 11.4 mile Malton – Pickering cycle route enhancements.
delivery of first round of the community environmental grant to 6 community groups across Ryedale. Energy
efficiency projects with a community focus, ranging from roof insulation to an EV charge point.
delivery of BEIS Local Authority Delivery Grant 2 (LAD2) funding, 73 measured ranging from Solar, EWI, ASHA
and SMHC.
secured BEIS Local Authority Delivery Grant 3 (LAD3) & Home Upgrade Grant 1 (HUG1) funding for on and off
gas-grid energy-efficient upgrades (EPC ratings E-G). Multiple LAs consortium bid.
secured private rental sector (PRS) minimum energy efficiency funding to support private rental sector compliance
to higher EPC ratings.
secured HNDU funding for a local geothermal project in partnership with Third Energy. Funding awarded and phase
1 feasibility ongoing.
supporting Circular Malton and Norton’s Anaerobic Digester project, which would reuse local Malton & Norton
commercial food waste.
19
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1


delivery of electric lifters on Streetscene bin lorries, providing additional CO2 emission savings.delivery of an ecotourism support program, whereby five tourism businesses have been supported in creating a sustainability action
plan by the University of York. A further five businesses to complete the program by April 2022.

7. Council Plan
Accountable
Officers
Challenge
Actions

Page 26

Progress Report

CX
A Council Plan is a necessary strategic document for guiding the work programme for the organisation and its
employees. The current Council Plan was adopted in September 2020.
Now the Council Plan is adopted, a corporate programme and underpinning performance framework is being developed.
This will be subject to democratic decision-making in due course.
This was highlighted as a Key Issue in the 2018/19 AGS (for action in 2019/20) and specifically noted that there would
be a revision of the Plan and its priorities. This was achieved.
A series of engagement sessions took place with Elected Members and officers to produce the new Council Plan, which
was adopted by Council in September 2020. It highlights four main priorities as below:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Our communities: strong, inclusive and attractive
Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs
Our environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place to live
Our organisation: an innovative, enterprising council.

A corporate programme is being delivered to achieve the objectives set out in the Council Plan; the reporting mechanism
for this is Policy and Resources. An annual report of performance for 2020/21 was presented to Policy and Resources in
September and to full Council in October 2021 with quarterly reporting thereafter.
Members have also engaged in a prioritisation exercise which gives direction on the key areas of work to be completed.
This and the agreement of RDC’s final budget is enabling officers to focus on delivering strategic goals.

20
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1

Page 27
21
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS
REPORT 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on audit reports
issued, counter fraud activity and other work completed since the last progress report
to this committee. It also provides an update on ongoing work.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended the Committee note the work undertaken by internal audit and the
counter fraud team in the year to date.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the Committee to fulfil its responsibility for considering the outcomes from
internal audit and counter fraud work.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with proper practice requirements for internal audit and
the Council’s Audit Charter if the results of audit work are not considered by an
appropriate committee. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is the committee designated
with responsibility for receiving the results of internal audit work at Ryedale District
Council.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
and relevant professional standards. These include the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the application of those standards in Local
Government and the CIPFA Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

5.2

Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. Annual losses are estimated to exceed
£40 billion in the United Kingdom. Councils are encouraged to prevent, detect and

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 29

20 JANUARY 2022

deter fraud in order to safeguard public finances.
5.3

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee approved the internal audit and counter fraud
work programmes for 2021/22 at its meeting held on 28th July 2021.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The internal audit progress report is contained in annex 1. It reports on progress
against the internal audit work programme. This includes a summary of work
completed since 1st April 2021, current work in progress, updated internal audit
priorities for the remainder of the year, and a summary of follow-up activity relating to
previously agreed audit actions.

6.2

The counter fraud progress report is contained in annex 2. It reports on progress
against the counter fraud work programme. A range of work is detailed including
activity to promote awareness of fraud, work with external agencies, and information
on the level of fraud reported to date.

7
7.1

IMPLICATIONS
The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Connor Munro, Audit Manager
The Veritau Group
01904 553512
connor.munro@veritau.co.uk
Jonathan Dodsworth, Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud
The Veritau Group
01904 552947
jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
2021/22 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Programmes

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 30

20 JANUARY 2022

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
Date: 21 April 2022
Annex 1

Page 31

2

BACKGROUND
1

Internal audit provides independent and objective assurance and advice
about the Council’s operations. It helps the organisation to achieve its
overall objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to the
evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes.

2

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and relevant professional standards. These include the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the
application of those standards in Local Government and the CIPFA
Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

3

In accordance with the PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to
report progress against the internal audit plan (the work programme)
agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and to identify any
emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the
committee.

4

The internal audit work programme was agreed by this committee in July
2021. The number of agreed days is 225 and the programme is flexible in
nature. Work is being kept under review to ensure that audit resources are
deployed to the areas of greatest risk and importance to the Council.

5

The purpose of this report is to update the committee on internal activity
between during 2021/22.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS
6

Since the previous progress report (presented to this committee on 20
January 2022), an audit of CIPFA Financial Management Code compliance
has been completed.

7

Work is in progress for a number of audits in the programme. This includes
records management, Everyone Active, and email security. These audits
are all now at the fieldwork stage and the majority are nearing completion.

8

Since the previous progress report, initial work has also commenced on the
Section 106 agreements and IT disaster recovery audits.

9

Draft reports have been issued for the Waste & Street Scene and payroll
audits. Discussions with managers are ongoing about actions required to
address the control weaknesses identified in these audits. A draft report
has also been issued for the audit of income collection and debtor
management. We expect to be able to report on the findings from all audits
in progress, and those at draft report stage, in our annual Head of Internal
Audit report.

10

In addition to the above, work is ongoing to gather information and
assurances to help support our overall opinion. We are already discussing,
and sharing knowledge and information with officers in respect of areas

Page 32

3
directly and indirectly impacted by Local Government Reorganisation (LGR).
At the same time, officers from Veritau are involved in discussing overall
LGR governance arrangements with key project leads, as well as being
directly involved in a number of project work streams.
11

A summary of internal audit work currently underway, as well as work
finalised in the year to date, is included in appendix A.

12

We have recently met with the Chief Finance Officer (S151) and with other
senior officers to refresh our understanding of current risks and priorities,
and so help target and focus ongoing and future work.

13

The work programme showing current priorities for internal audit work is
included at appendix B. This shows all eight remaining 2021/22 audits in
the ‘do now’ category.

14

One audit (council tax and NNDR) is in the ‘do next’ category. This is
because it is possible that the work will commence in April but there is also
a possibility that it will slip into May.

15

In determining which audits will actually be undertaken during 2021/22,
the priority and relative risk of each area has continued to be considered
throughout the year. None of the audits in the ‘do later’ category will be
undertaken during 2021/22. This includes service risk management
(previously reported to this committee as being paused), which has not
been completed due to pressures facing officers during the year. However,
all nine of these audit areas are, in some form, included in the draft
2022/23 work programme being presented to committee at this meeting.

16

A summary of the key findings from the CIPFA Financial Management Code
audit is provided at appendix C. Details of actions agreed are also shown.

17

Appendix D lists our current definitions for action priorities and overall
assurance levels.

FOLLOW-UP OF AGREED ACTIONS
18

All actions agreed with services as a result of internal audit work are
followed up to ensure that underlying control weaknesses are addressed. As
a result of this work we are generally satisfied that sufficient progress is
being made to address the control weaknesses identified in previous audits.
Where further assurances are required, follow-up of agreed actions will be
included as part of other audits in the work programme.

Page 33

4

APPENDIX A: 2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK
Audits in progress
Audit

Status

Section 106 agreements

In progress

Records management

In progress

Everyone Active

In progress

IT disaster recovery

In progress

Email security

In progress

Income collection and debtor management

Draft report

Waste & Street Scene

Draft report

Payroll

Draft report

Final reports issued
Reported to
Committee

Opinion

Creditors

July 2021

Reasonable Assurance

Main accounting system

July 2021

Substantial Assurance

Insurance

July 2021

Reasonable Assurance

Local code of corporate governance

October 2021

Reasonable Assurance

CIPFA Financial Management Code

April 2022

Substantial Assurance

Audit

Other work completed in 2021/22
Internal audit work has been undertaken in a range of other areas during the year,
including those listed below.


Certification of the Local Authority Compliance and Enforcement Grant and the
Protect and Vaccinate Grant



Support and advice provided through the year on service risk management
development

Page 34

5

APPENDIX B: CURRENT PRIORITIES FOR INTERNAL AUDIT
WORK
Audit

Status
Do now

Corporate & cross-cutting
Section 106 agreements
Records management
Service risk management
Freedom of Information
Transparency (follow-up)
Procurement
Financial systems
Payroll
Income collection and debtor management
Budget monitoring and management
Council tax and NNDR
Service areas
Waste & Street Scene
Everyone Active
Depot operations
Empty Homes Strategy
Environmental health
Home energy efficiency
Technical / projects
IT disaster recovery
Email security

Do next

Do later




















Further explanation on the work status
The programme of work is subject to ongoing review and will be adjusted in
response to changes in the Council’s activities, risks, operations, systems and
controls. During the year, planned work is prioritised on the basis of:
•
•
•

Do first – work of the highest value, priority, or urgency
Do next – work to be started after current audit work is completed
Do later – work to be scheduled for consideration later in the year

Changes in the priority and timings of work are agreed with council officers.
Individual audit assignments can also move between the categories as required.
As we have reached the end of the financial year we are currently assessing and
planning those audits classified as ‘do next’ and ‘do later’, to help decide which
we will be completed as part of the current years’ work and which pieces of work
will be included as a priority for next year.

Page 35

6
Work to support our Annual Opinion
The programme of internal audit work is prepared on the basis of an initial
assessment of risk and to ensure there is sufficient coverage of the framework of
governance, risk management and internal control.
We have defined the following as areas where assurance is required in order to
enable us to provide an evidence based opinion:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Strategic planning
Organisational governance
Financial governance
Risk management
Information governance
Performance management and data quality
Procurement and contract management
People management
Asset management
Programme and project management
ICT governance

The requirement for providing assurance across these areas is taken into
account when prioritising work.

Page 36

7

APPENDIX C: SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES FROM AUDITS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO
THE COMMITTEE
System/area
(month issued)

Area reviewed

Assurance Agreed Comments
rating
actions
1 2 3

Management
actions agreed

CIPFA Financial
Management Code

This audit reviewed
the Council’s selfassessment against
the principles of
CIPFA Financial
Management Code.
Specifically, it sought
to confirm that
relevant analyses of
the Council's
financial
management
standards have been
conducted (in line
with CIPFA’s
Financial
Management Code),
that the results of
these analyses have
been monitored and
reported, and that
suitable actions have
been identified to
address any
weaknesses.

Substantial
Assurance

No management actions
were required.

(April 2022)

0

0

0

The audit found that each of the principles
within the Financial Management Code was
included within the scope of the selfassessment.

Page 37

A sample of the principles was reviewed and it
was found that the controls and
documentation outlined in the selfassessment were, in the vast majority of
cases, in place.
The self-assessment has been reviewed and
updated for 2022/23 and was reported to
Overview and Scrutiny on 24 March 2022.
The revised self-assessment provides an
update on areas for improvement identified in
the original assessment and acknowledges the
impact that local government reorganisation
(LGR) will have going forwards.
Some minor improvements to formatting,
presentation and usability could be made but,
overall, our view is that the self-assessment is
a fair reflection of the Council’s compliance
status and is subject to satisfactory review.

8

APPENDIX D: AUDIT OPINIONS AND PRIORITIES FOR ACTIONS
Audit opinions
Our work is based on using a variety of audit techniques to test the operation of systems. This may include sampling and
data analysis of wider populations. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion relates only to the
objectives set out in the audit scope and is based on risks related to those objectives that we identify at the time of the
audit.

Page 38

Opinion

Assessment of internal control

Substantial
assurance

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating
effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.

Reasonable
assurance

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some
issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Limited assurance

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the
system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement
of objectives in the area audited.

No assurance

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance
identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively
manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Priorities for actions
Priority 1

A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires
urgent attention by management

Priority 2

A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs
to be addressed by management.

Priority 3

The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.

COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
Date: 21 April 2022
Annex 2

Page 39

2

BACKGROUND
1

Fraud is a significant risk to local government. Losses to councils are
estimated to exceed £7.8 billion annually in the United Kingdom.1

2

Veritau delivers a corporate fraud service to the council which aims to
prevent, detect and deter fraud and related criminality. The counter fraud
team: investigates allegations of fraud, plans and takes part in counter
fraud campaigns (e.g. the National Fraud Initiative), undertakes fraud
awareness activities with staff and the public, and maintains and updates
the council’s counter fraud framework and associated policies.

3

This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on counter fraud
activity to date, including recent actions following our last report to the
committee.

FRAUD MANAGEMENT
4

In December 2021, the Chancellor announced a new grant scheme to
provide continued support to businesses affected by the Covid-19
pandemic. The new Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant (OHLG) has now
opened to businesses in the area. The government also introduced an
extension to the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) scheme.

5

Organised criminals have been quick to target the new grant schemes, with
reports from councils receiving false applications nationally. The fraud team
shares intelligence updates from work with other councils, and national
contacts, to alert staff to potential identities and bank accounts used to
commit fraud.

6

In March, training was delivered to the Finance Team to raise awareness of
the latest cybercrimes being perpetrated against local authorities. In
particular the threat of mandate or payment diversion fraud was raised due
to an increase in instances recorded both regionally and nationally. Raising
awareness of the increasingly sophisticated techniques used by criminal
organisations to commit mandate fraud is essential to protect the council.

7

An awareness campaign informing staff of issues surrounding bribery and
money laundering and how to report it was delivered on 9 December to
mark International Anti-Corruption Day. It followed previous awareness
raising campaigns for Cyber Security Awareness Month in October and
International Fraud Awareness Week in November.

8

An anti-fraud leaflet was included with annual council tax bills issued to all
domestic properties in spring 2022. The insert raises awareness of fraud
with the public and provides information on how to report concerns to the
counter fraud team.

1

Annual Fraud Indicator 2017, Crowe Clark Whitehill

Page 40

3

MULTI-AGENCY WORK
9

Work on the 2020/21 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is almost complete.
The counter fraud team has reviewed over 500 matches across a range of
service areas. The team is currently looking at more recently released
matches designed to highlight fraud within Covid-19 grant schemes.

INVESTIGATIVE WORK
10

In 2021/22, the counter fraud team received forty-eight referrals of
suspected fraud. These cover potential Covid-19 related fraud, council tax
fraud, and council tax support fraud. To date the team has detected over
£26k of fraud and error. There are currently fifteen cases under
investigation.

Page 41

APPENDIX A: SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATIVE WORK 2021/22
The table below shows the success rate of investigations and levels of savings achieved through counter fraud work in
2021/22.
2021/22
(As at 28/02/22)

2020/21
(Actual: Full Yr)

£8,978

£34,549

Amount of savings identified relating to Covid-19 business
grant related fraud

£20,000

£30,000

% of investigations completed which result in a successful
outcome (e.g. payments stopped or amended, sanctions,
prosecutions)

62%

64%

Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings e.g. repayment
of loss) identified through fraud investigation

Page 42

Caseload figures for the period are:
2021/22
(As at 28/02/22)
48

2020/21
(Full Year)
57

Number of cases under investigation

15

132

Number of investigations completed

13

11

Number of verification cases completed3

15

n/a

Referrals received

2
3

As at 31/03/21
Verification cases relate to the review of applications for Covid-19 grants.

5
Activity

Work completed or in progress

Fraud detection
and
investigation

The service promotes the use of criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond to any fraud
perpetrated against the council. Activity to date includes the following:

Page 43



Covid-19 related fraud – The counter fraud team has supported the council to prevent and detect
fraud within Covid-19 related grants. The team has investigated six cases of potential fraud which
resulted in two fraudulent applications being blocked and no fraud being found in the remaining four.
The team, as part of a government mandated exercise, is undertaking verification exercises on
grants paid during the first lockdown in 2020. To date fifteen verifications have been completed all of
which were found to be correct. One investigation and two verifications are ongoing.



Council tax fraud – The team has received eleven referrals for potential council tax fraud. Four
investigations have been completed all relating to false or incorrect claims for single person
discounts. All investigations resulted in invoices being issued for unpaid council tax and two people
received formal written warnings.



Business rates fraud – Two investigations have been completed in this area. One resulted in a
large overpayment of incorrectly claimed small business rate relief being identified. The debt has
been fully repaid to the council.



Council tax support fraud – Twenty-eight referrals for potential fraud relating to council tax
support have been received. One investigation has been completed this year which resulted in a
warning letter being issued to a claimant who declared themselves to be single, but had been living
with a partner for some time.



Internal fraud – No internal fraud cases have been reported in 2021/22 to date.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

SECTION 151 OFFICER (ANTON HODGE)

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD WORK
PROGRAMMES 2022/23

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS). In accordance with those standards internal audit is required to prepare an
indicative risk-based audit programme following consultation with the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and senior management. The purpose of this report is to present to
members the internal audit work programme for 2022/23. The proposed programme of work
for counter fraud is also provided, for information.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that the internal audit work programme for 2022/23 be approved, and that
the counter fraud work programme be noted.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the committee to fulfil its responsibility to approve the internal audit work
programme as part of its responsibility for overseeing the work of internal audit (as stated
within paragraph 7.6 of the Council’s Audit Charter).

3.2

To ensure that the committee understands the scope and extent of counter fraud work to be
undertaken.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) if the internal audit work programme is not approved by the committee,
and it may be subject to increased scrutiny and challenge.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit and counter fraud supports the Council’s overall aims and
priorities by promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the Council to
become a more effective organisation.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Page

45

21 April 2022

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The proposed areas of internal audit coverage are included in annex 1. These have been
identified following a risk assessment, undertaken to ensure that internal audit resources
are prioritised towards those areas which are considered to carry the most risk and / or
which contribute the most to the achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities and
objectives.

6.2

The final year of Local Government Reorganisation preparations will have a significant
impact on the Council’s risks and priorities, and on the systems and processes that help
deliver them. Accordingly, the emphasis of internal audit work and the approach taken in
2022/23 will be significantly different to previous years.

6.3

The proposed programme of internal audit work for 2022/23 is based on a total allocation of
225 days. This is unchanged from 2021/22.

6.4

The work programme prepared for counter fraud is included in annex 2. The content of
programme has been discussed and agreed with the relevant directors and other senior
officers. A total of 105 days has been agreed for counter fraud work.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Section 151 Officer

Authors:

Connor Munro, Audit Manager
The Veritau Group
connor.munro@veritau.co.uk
Jonathan Dodsworth, Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud
The Veritau Group
jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, CIPFA Local Government Application Note (for the United
Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards)

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Page

46

21 April 2022

Agenda Item 9

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR PEOPLE AND RESOURCES

TITLE OF REPORT:

SAFER RYEDALE PROGRESS WITH DELIVERING THE
COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1

To provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an update on the work of the
Safer Ryedale Partnership on the delivery of the Ryedale Community Safety Action
Plan 2021/2023

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
(i)

Note the achievements of the Safer Ryedale, Action Plan as outlined in
(Appendix A) to deliver the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
Strategy (Appendix B)

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was designated as the Ryedale District
Council’s crime and disorder overview and scrutiny committee in July 2009. To
undertake this function, it was resolved to receive reports from the Safer Ryedale
Partnership.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The significant risks would be the failure to meet the local authorities’ legislative
responsibilities.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 47

21 APRIL 2022

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Ryedale District Council- council plan 2020-24 “Our environment a sustainable, safe
and clean place” A safe place to live.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

In the interests of efficiency and economy, the responsible authorities in the county of
North Yorkshire have agreed to establish a single Community Safety Partnership for
North Yorkshire to be known as the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
(NYCSP).

6.2

Section 17 Crime & Disorder Act 1998 the crime and disorder act were enacted in
1998 and places a statutory duty on all local authorities together with their partner
agencies to develop and deliver a community safety strategy.

6.3

This strategy is delivered through the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
(Appendix A). Section 17 of the act requires local authorities to identify community
safety implications in all their activities which Ryedale District Council (RDC) complies
with in order to prevent crime and disorder, drugs misuse and reoffending.

6.4

The purpose of the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership (NYCSP) is to bring
together the responsible authorities, supported by other relevant organisations, to fulfil
their statutory responsibilities to work together. The NYCSP is supported by district
and community safety hubs. The themes and objectives within the strategy are
identified following a Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment (JSIA). A number of joint
coordinating groups exist and where appropriate Ryedale District Council is
represented.

6.5

The Ryedale District Community Safety Group brings together the operational
managers responsible for the delivery of the action plan (Appendix A). The group is
there to ensure local delivery of the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
(NYCSP) Plan and respond to emerging issues affecting individuals and communities,
in particular:
i)
ii)
iii)

protect the local community from crime and disorder and help people
feel safer.
Manage local issues e.g., anti-social behaviour (ASB), drug or alcohol
misuse, re-offending and crime prevention.
Assess local crime and disorder priorities and consult with partners
plus the local community about how to deal with them.

6.6

Statutory partners including Ryedale District Council (RDC), North Yorkshire County
Council (NYCC), North Yorkshire Police (NYP), North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue
Service(NYFRS), and representatives from the voluntary sector meet regularly. The
Group provides feedback to the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
illustrating how local activity contributes towards the strategic objectives

6.7

Local activities in 2021/22 delivered by multi-agency partners are outline in the report
in the delivery of the North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership (NYCSP) strategy

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 48

21 APRIL 2022

and action plan and allows for the coordination of activity across the district.
(i) Partnership Development
(ii) Community Safety Hub.
(iii) Early and effective Interventions
(iv) Hate Crime and Community Cohesion
(v) Serious and Organised Crime
(vi) Domestic Abuse
6.8

The North Yorkshire Community Safety Strategy highlights the importance of
Partnership working and the development of Community Safety Hubs in District
Councils to increase multi-agency collaboration to tackle anti-social behaviour and
crime affecting communities, including the co-location of police, district councils and
other services in ‘Community Safety Hubs’ in each area. In February 2021 North
Yorkshire Police Safer Neighbourhood Team co-located to Ryedale House. This has
resulted in a shared front reception desk for police and council and the joint sharing of
office space with the Safer, Stronger Communities Team. The new Community safety
Hub has continued to further develop and now includes Police Officers, Police
Community Support Officers (PCSO) a NYP Domestic Violence Officer, Problem
Solving Tactical Expert Advisor, NYP School Liaison Officer, NYCC, Change Direction
Youth Mentor, Community First Yorkshire community development officer, Fire &
Rescue, all now regularly work within the community safety Hub. The Ryedale
Community Safety Hub is be recognised across North Yorkshire as best practice.

6.9

Ryedale Community Safety Hub now host fortnightly multi-agency problem solving
meetings (MAPS) which are jointly chaired by the Safer, Stronger Community Manager
and North Yorkshires Police (NYP) Inspector. The MAPS meetings focus on complex
cases of Antisocial Behaviour that require a multi-agency response. The meetings are
attended by various partners linked to specific cases. These include North Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS), North Yorkshire Adult Social Care & Mental Health
services, Social Housing Providers, RDC Housing, (NYP) Domestic Violence Officer,
(NYP) Problem Solving Tactical Advisor, and Horizons.

6.10

Referrals for the meeting are made via the North Yorkshire Orcuma case management
system which all North Yorkshire local authorities use to enable sharing of information
across the area. The meeting provides the details required to formulate and direct
resources at the areas and issues required to address the antisocial behaviour. The
use of the Orcuma system and regular meeting also helps identify repeat cases and
gives a full history of events. This allows partner agencies to identify any complexities
to the case that need to be addressed.

6.11

The Community Safety Hub partnership group from April 2021- March 2022 have had
95 full referrals direct into the Orcuma system from partner agencies that have reached
the qualifying matrix threshold to be presented to the fortnightly multi-agency problem
solving meeting. On an average each meeting discusses 9 open cases with attending
partners.

6.12

Between the dates of June 2021- March 2022 the Community Team have conducted
75 joint visits with partner agencies which have included social housing providers,
Living Well Co-ordinators, North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue, North Yorkshire Police,
North Yorkshire Moors National Park, Trading Standards, English Heritage. The
breakdown of these visits includes welfare checks of residents and concerns around
property issues, health and wellbeing, animal welfare cases, licencing checks (nighttime economy), environmental crimes, and concerns around hoarding issues, linked to
Fire Safety.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
21 APRIL 2022

Page 49

6.13

Weekly tasking/ briefing meeting takes place each Monday with representatives from
the hub to include Inspector/Sergeant, NYRS, Community Enforcement, Community
Link Officers, RDC Homeless Officer and Housing Officer. The tasking document
includes information around intelligence, patrol prioritises, vulnerable individuals and
vulnerable communities. This enables information sharing around current cases and
gives the partnership the ability to take action as a group to aid in the resolution of
issues in collaborative way of working to problem solve.

6.14

In December 2021 it was agreed to set up a new fortnightly Community Multi agency
problem solving meeting to focus solely on early intervention and prevention and
community cohesion. The group was set up to try to identify any emerging community
tensions, upcoming community events and requirement for any community
enforcement activities to take place. The concept behind the formation of this new
group is around early identification of threats, risk, and cohesion, and to help empower
local communities to resolve issues and community tensions that directly affect their
areas whilst working with partner agencies. Parish/ Town Councils attend the meeting
and work with partner agencies to discuss, bring to the fore and make referrals. Parish
and Town Council representatives are encouraged to make referrals into the Hub, and
these are recorded in the North Yorkshire Orcuma case management system.
Recording the local issues also allow the group to look at any trends around community
tensions and events for forward planning.

6.15

Prevention Work- The Community team, North Yorkshire Police and North Yorkshire
Fire & Rescue, have also been involved in a number of Road Safety Winter Checks,
and speeding awareness initiatives to reduce road accidents in our area, encouraging
drivers to check their cars and slow down. A community Safety Hub prevention
calendar has also been developed inline with National awareness raising campaigns
i.e., safeguarding week.

6.16

Safeguarding and protection of our most vulnerable residents have also been at the
heart of the work of the Community Safety Partnership. Adults and Children at Risk of
Protection of Domestic abuse. RDC officers regular attend MARAC an MATAC
meetings in a timely manner and help put in place safety planning quickly for victims
at high risk of domestic abuse and families.

6.17

Domestic abuse awareness session held in June 2021 was well attended by RDC
employees and external partners. Staff also encouraged to undertake IDAS online
webinars & events. RDC Housing & Community Team attended online Hard to Help
training raising awareness of domestic abuse and how to engage with perpetrators. As
well as running a virtual event was held on 7th October 2021 to raise awareness of
IDAS and other key domestic abuse services – attended by 48 people. Work is ongoing
to enable a member of IDAS staff to co-locate with the RDC housing team on a part
time basis.

6.18

Helping those in need, the community Link officers have also been involved in
supporting the work of Citizens Advice bureau (CAB) ensuring that people seeking
help and assistant can do this regardless of their circumstances. Ryedale District
Council has supported the development of the Citizen Advice mobile van at the
Pickering and Helmsley Markets, providing a free of charge pitch site to allow
accessible advice to those in need and also providing officer support and information
on council services available. The team also attend the Ryedale Charities together
‘One Stop Shop’ in Pickering on a monthly basis and are working with NHS CCGs on
making the links to wellbeing and social prescribing.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
21 APRIL 2022

Page 50

6.19

Community Safety has become more intelligence led and introduced new area
profiles for each of the community link officer areas. The information helps officers
identify key issues and use their resources in conjunction with key partners.

6.20

The introduction of two community enforcement officers into the community team to
address environmental crime and ensure we fulfil our animal welfare duty, has see
great partnership working and progression in enforcement action against people
breaking the law. Community officers have now been trained WABITAB Accredited
Enforcement Training and dog behaviour and control training and one officer has
received national award from Keep Britain Tidy.

6.21

As outlined in the Safer Ryedale Action plan there has been a substantial amount of
work achieved in 2021/22. It has been agreed at the NYCSP that the CSP strategy will
remain in place until after Local Government reorganisation and Ryedale will continue
to deliver on the action plan, while developing the community safety Hub in 2022/23.

7.5

IMPLICATIONS

7.6

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial – The financial requirements to deliver the strategy and action plan are
met through the service budget and funding from the North Yorkshire Police and
Crime Commission funding.

b)

Legal – There are legal requirements to be undertaken in the pursuit of taking
enforcement action that are met withing the service budget.

c)

Equalities- new area profiles allow the community team to identify our most
vulnerable individuals and identify areas that require further investments/
resources.

7.7

NEXT STEPS

7.8

Further development of the Community Safety Hub and development of a new Safer
Ryedale Action Plan for 2022/23.

Name of Service Manager
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Bridget Skaife
01653 600666 ext: 43255
Bridgte.Skaife@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Overview and Scrutiny - Committee 25th March 2021- Safer Ryedale, Community Safety Plan

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 51

21 APRIL 2022

Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Location or web address

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 52

21 APRIL 2022

Ryedale Community Safety Partnership
Action Plan 2021 – 2023
Page 53
Version 4.1
Last updated 21.03.2022

LOCAL OUTCOME 1

PARTNERS WORK COLLABORATIVELY TO DELIVER PROJECTS THAT IMPROVE COMMUNITY SAFETY

PRIORITY 1

ENGAGE IN MULTI-AGENCY PARTNERSHIP WORKING TO UNDERTAKE A PLACE BASED APPROACH TO SERVICE DELIVERY

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1.

Development of
the Community
Safety Hub

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD
BS / NYP





Page 54
2.

3.

4.

Engagement
with local
communities
with a focus on
place based
ways of working
Be proactive and
visible in the
Community
Encourage
partnership
working as a
means of
undertaking a
multi-agency
approach to
problem solving

PROGRESS

Establishment of a Hoarding
Engagement Team to support
vulnerable individuals and prevent
enforcement notices being served.
Place Based areas developed with
new intelligence led area profiles
linked to Town Councils/Ward areas
and police beats

Launched Community Safety Hub with co-location of Ryedale SNT to Ryedale House
alongside Community Team. (completed)
NYFRS and NYY join hub on part time basis as well as NYP Domestic Violence Officer and
NYP Problem Solving Tactical Advisor (completed)
Establishment of a Hoarding Engagement Team (In progress)
Placed Based areas developed with area profiles and aligned with Police Beats (completed)
NYP School Liaison officers now work in conjunction with the hub and deliver a range of
lessons & assemblies in targeted schools. (In progress)

BS



Implementation of the Place
Standards Toolkit across the 5 area
profiles

Community Asset mapping undertaken across all towns and villages in Ryedale.
(completed)
RDC have developed Local Insights software which has the potential to significantly reduce
labour hours manually sourcing, analysing community profile mapping data. (In progress)
Follow up sessions place standards (Pickering) project reviewing and actions (In progress)

BS / NYP




BS



Attendance at community events
Prevention campaigns to be
launched
Development of the Community
Connect Partnership
Attendance at multi-agency
meetings (full list in appendix)
Joint visits undertaken in
collaboration with multi-agency
partners

Hub prevention campaign calendar produced in line with national awareness weeks
(completed)
Community events attended by RDC officers (ongoing)
Community Connect website launched in April with support pages, partner info and a news
section. (completed)
Community Connect leaflets circulated to all schools in July approx. 8000 pupils, providing
information on support services. (completed)
Weekly bulletin launched in August to provide regular updates to partners. (
(completed)
joint visits undertaken by RDC officers in collaboration with partner agencies. (ongoing)
Community connect sub-groups now meet quarterly, main CC meeting remains monthly.
Wellbeing and mental health, community safety- community cohesion, financial inclusion
and community and voluntary suitability (ongoing)




LOCAL OUTCOME 2

RYEDALE RESIDENTS ARE SAFE AND PROTECTED FROM ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

PRIORITY 2

REDUCE INCIDENTS OF ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1.

Page 55
2.

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD

To be proactive, BS / NYP
visible and
engaging with
the community
to encourage the
reporting of ASB
at the first
instance.
Use of legislation BS /NYP
to deal with
those causing
ASB



Re-establishment of Community
and Policing Group meetings to
provide a forum for which ASB
issues can be raised.

Recording of instances of ASB/Community Safety concerns reported to RDC Community
Team (ongoing)
RDC Community team now has 2 full-time community enforcement officers in post
carrying out patrols. (Completed)
Planning underway for CAP group meetings. (In progress)



Undertake planning process for the
introduction of PSPOs, including
consultations with NYP, community
representatives, and land
owners/occupiers as required.
RDC Community Team officers to
receive training in ASB legislation
via the Enforcement Academy of
Keep Britain Tidy
Continue to host the fortnightly
MAPS meeting.
Provision of a weekly Tasking
document highlighting ASB issues
Establishment of School MAPS and
Community MAPS meetings
Regular attendance at Scarborough
and Ryedale TT & CG, Ryedale &
Whitby MACE meeting, and
Disruption Panel.

Further training provided to officers via the Keep Britain Tidy Enforcement Academy. 3
FPNs issued. (Completed)
introduction of Public Space Protection orders for Ryedale (In progress)
New RDC Community Officers continue to undertake the KBT enforcement training.
Warrant cards currently being produced. (Completed)
Community Enforcement Officer received national award from Keep Britain Tidy
(Completed)



3.

Undertake a
multi-agency
approach to
tackle incidents
of ASB

BS / NYP

PROGRESS






Weekly Tasking meetings launched in June 2021 with attendance from RDC Community
and Housing Officers, NYP, NYFRS. The Tasking document provides intelligence and lists
vulnerable individuals, communities and patrol priorities. (Completed)
A School MAPS meeting has been established in line with the 2021/22 academic year to
focus on youth ASB issues. (In progress)
Planning underway for Community MAPS, to be launched by the end of the quarter. ASB
cases identified at the weekly Tasking meeting are now entered onto the Orcuma system.
(Completed)

LOCAL OUTCOME 3
PRIORITY 3

ADULTS AND CHILDREN AT RISK ARE PROTECTED FROM DOMESTIC ABUSE
FACILITATE EFFECTIVE ACTION AGAINST OFFENDERS OF DOMESTIC ABUSE, AND IMPROVE THE RESPONSE AND SUPPORT
PROVIDED FOR VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC ABUSE AND THEIR FAMILIES

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1.

Implementation
of training and
awareness
sessions

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD
KR/JM




Page 56
3.

Promoting and
encouraging
referrals to
Foundation’s

JM/BS



Partners to ensure staff complete
relevant training
Promotion/awareness of IDAS
services
o IDAS rep to be added to CC
o Links to be established with
Everyone Active

PROGRESS
DV awareness session held in June 2021 and well attended by RDC employees and
external partners. Staff also encouraged to undertake IDAS online webinars & events
(Completed)
RDC Housing & Community Team attended online Hard to Help training raising
awareness of domestic abuse and how to engage with perpetrators. (Completed)
A virtual event was held on 7th October 2021 to raise awareness of IDAS and other key DV
services – attended by 48 people. Feedback and info from the session was circulated to
all attendees and shared via the Community Connect Partnership. Work is ongoing to
enable a member of IDAS staff to co-locate with the RDC housing team on a part time
basis. RDC are also working on a Domestic Abuse Workforce Charter to outline support
for staff who disclose abuse. (Completed)

IDAS released their annual data for 2021 (Yorkshire):
 Managed over 22,000 helpline calls
 Received 20,000 referrals
 Supported over 10,000 people in the community
 Grown our team to over 200 staff and volunteers
 Increased our safe accommodation, supporting over 250 families in our refuges
and dispersed units
 Our helpline was open 365 days a year and we recently received 'Helpline
accreditation’
 Launched innovative new programmes of support for children & young people
 Campaigned on Family Courts and the Rape Review
Share +Choices presentation in staff Foundation reported that they were experiencing staffing issues. The +choices service
meetings to promote use of service will continue but they are not accepting new referrals. Referrals still open for emergency
accommodation. (ongoing)
when they start to accept new
referrals

PRIORITY

4.

+choices
perpetrator
scheme
Partners work
together on high
risk domestic
abuse cases to
reduce risk to
victims, and
improve service
response from
all partners

BS/JM

6.








Work in
partnership to
deliver current
North Yorkshire
and York
Domestic Abuse
Strategy locally
Work in
partnership
across North
Yorkshire in
response to the
Domestic Abuse
Act 2021

PROGRESS
Still a pause on +Choices referrals. Fortnightly monitoring meetings are attended by
Senior Housing Specialist. (ongoing)

Page 57
5.

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD

KM/BS/JM 

KM/JM




Ensure referrals are discussed in
MARAC & MATAC meetings in a
timely manner and safety planning
put in place quickly for victims at
high risk of domestic abuse and
families.
Regularly refer into MAPS to
increase awareness of local issues.
Attendance at Domestic Abuse
Review Meetings by partners to
share intelligence and ensure
correct action is taken.
Regular attendance at Domestic
Homicide Review meetings by
Safer, Stronger Communities
Manager to share good practice
and improve service delivery.
Strategy delivery to be a standing
item at the Scarborough, Whitby
and Ryedale Domestic Abuse
Forum

Meet the Safe Accommodation
duty across the County
Regular attendance at multi agency
meetings to undertake Strategic
Needs Assessment. This assessment
will be used to inform the North
Yorks Domestic Abuse Strategy due
to be published in Jan 2022

January 2021 –staff attend Domestic Homicide review in January 2021. (Completed)
MAPs meetings are held fortnightly with an average of 8 referrals/cases open in the
Orcuma System. (ongoing)

A Regional Domestic Abuse Housing Forum was started in Dec 2020 for local authorities
and housing associations to collaborate, RDC sends a representative regularly to learn
about national best practice. (Completed)

Accommodation is commissioned county wide and there is currently no Safe
Accommodation in Ryedale. (Completed)
Multi-Agency Domestic Abuse Partnership Board has been developed with
representation from RDC on the Board.(Completed)

LOCAL OUTCOME 4
PRIORITY 4

IMPROVED WELLBEING AND LIFE CHANCES FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE AT RISK OF HARM
SUPPORT AND PROTECT ADULTS AT RISK, CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE INCLUDING THOSE AT RISK OF EXPLOITATION &
RADICALISATION

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1.

Page 58
2.

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD


All partners have
fit-for purpose
safeguarding
policies
embedded
within their
organisation and
implement
regular
safeguarding
training and
awareness
sessions.

KM/JM

Support and
monitor local
services for
young people

Simone

Wilkinson
+
Barbara
Merrygold 
(NYCC
Children



Participation in Local Safeguarding
Partnership meetings
RDC to host Safeguarding Working
Group Meetings for senior
managers as a means of arranging
training, monitoring referrals and
ensuring compliance with policy.

PROGRESS
The RDC safeguarding policy and procedure was reviewed in Oct 2019. An independent
internal review of safeguarding practice at RDC was undertaken by Veritau which
resulted in an action plan to address issues raised. (Completed)
Safeguarding Week was held 21-25th June 2021 and a full program of online learning was
available to staff and was well attended by RDC officers. (Completed)
RDC now have a corporate training record in place and regularly monitored. Standby
arrangements have also been put in place for Ryecare service. Managers now ensure that
safeguarding is a standard agenda item on team meetings and one-to-ones. Level 2
training on Safeguarding Adults and Safeguarding Children was offered to RDC team
leaders and managers in Sept 21(Completed)
Basic Safeguarding Awareness Training was delivered to RDC staff by the Senior Housing
Specialist on 04/11 & 08/12. (Completed)

Re-establish services for young
people when guidelines permit,
including the re-launch of Crucial
Crew Safety workshops
Cyber-Enabled Sexual Crime
awareness training and
presentations to be undertaken

Rollout of themed lessons and assemblies at targeted schools by PCSOs and School
Liaison Officers (In progress)
SW, 30/11/21: NYCC Children and Families Service are currently reviewing the Create
Confidence Groups and a working group has been set up to look at the offer for children
and young people. (In progress)

PRIORITY

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD
and
Families
Service:
Early
Help)

3.

Page 59
4.

9.

Raise awareness
of stalking and
harassment

Angela
Hartley
BS/JM

Ensure the Local
Authorities
responsibilities
relating to the
Protect Duty are
implemented
once further
details are
released

Rob
Robinson

Provision of
Prevent
Awareness
sessions when
required and
effective
dissemination of
Prevent issues
across the
District

KR

PROGRESS

within educational establishments
at an age-appropriate level



Partners to attend monthly Stalking
and Harassment meetings with
instances of high risk cases to be
raised at The Domestic Abuse
Forum and MAPS meetings

Workshop w/c 15.11 – potential actions
from this. Rob Robinson SAG
 Advocate for a LGR Locality Group
to ensure Protect is within the
Work stream and provide further
details to partners through the
Prevent Group
 Hold discussions relating to the
Governance around the Contest
Arrangements for North Yorkshire.
Completion of Prevent Local Delivery
Group Action Plan

There is now a dedicated Stalking Team at NY Police (Completed)

As part of Event Planning and Management Ryedale DC now has a page on its website
highlighting counter terrorism considerations which encourages event organisers to
produce an Event Security Plan to address the terrorism threat by taking into account
attack methodologies and your vulnerabilities. These plans are then forwarded to
Counter Terrorism Police North East for assessment as part of the event evaluation
process undertaken by SAG. The webpage also has links to free ACT Awareness
eLearning training and other national guidance documents on counter terrorism to assist
event organisers. (Completed/ ongoing)
employees at Ryedale DC have attended recent Prevent training. (ongoing)
Quarterly Prevent North East newsletters are disseminated to all partners and quarterly
updates from NYP Prevent Officer is provided at meetings and shared to all partners.
(Completed)
A Guide to symbols and terminology was issued to partners(ongoing)

PRIORITY

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD

PROGRESS
EU settlement updates sent to partners

10.

Raise awareness
of modern
slavery amongst
partner officers

KR



Implementation of modern slavery
awareness training

Hope For Justice for online Modern Slavery Awareness session (ongoing)
Access to training is disseminated on a regular basis to all staff. (ongoing)
Draft Modern Slavery statement issued for discussion as part of the RDCs Safeguarding
Working Group. (ongoing)

11.

Page 60

Raise awareness
of Hate and
Mate crime with
those living and
working in the
community

KR/SW




Ensure stats for hate crime is
received on a quarterly basis
Ensure Hate & Mate crime is
included in all safeguarding training

The National Referral Mechanism and the access to housing to housing across York and
North Yorkshire continues to operate for the housing of cases for a maximum of 5
days(ongoing)
Hate Crime ‘Train the Trainer’ training scheduled for 2022. (Completed)

LOCAL OUTCOME 5

TO ENSURE THAT RYEDALE REMAINS AN AREA OF LOW CRIME

PRIORITY 5

TO PREVENT AND DETECT INSTANCES OF CRIME IN OUR TOWNS AND RURAL AREAS

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1.

Page 61
2.

3.

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD

The Community
safety hub
should adopt a
collaborative
approach to
crime
prevention and
detection

NYP/BS

To raise the
impact and
threat of
poaching and
the associated
threat to the
community. This
includes both
wildlife offences
and criminal
damage to fields
and boundaries

NYP/BS

The prevention,
detection and
early
intervention
when crime
patterns and
trends are

NYP















Establish joint problem solving
plans taking account the interests
and priorities of our partner
agencies.
Utilise the skills and visibility of
volunteers in Crime prevention
roadshows and presentations.
Encourage community reporting of
crime
To increase awareness of poaching
offences and pre-empt the start of
the Hare coursing season through
the creation of an operational
order.
To produce an investigation pack
for officers and staff covering
poaching and Hare coursing.
To raise the profile of vulnerable
areas to partner agencies.
To build links between partner
agencies both professional and
voluntary and promote
To work directly with the
community or through
collaboration with partners to
promote crime prevention
initiatives.
To create problem solving plans
with partners to better focus Police

PROGRESS















Introduction of a NYP Problem Solving Tactical Officer into the Hub(Completed)
NYP Domestic Abuse Officer and School Liaison Officer part time in the
Hub(Completed)
Joint partnership working with NYP Crime Prevention/Cyber Crime
experts(Completed)
Introduction of the pilot scheme for community messaging highlighting the ‘Be
Informed’ initiative around low level ASB in the Market Towns of Ryedale(Completed)
Community Enforcement Officers regular meetings with the NYP Rural Crime Officers
to exchange intel and sharing of good practice(Completed)
Partnership work with Rural Crime and NYP PC animal welfare officer around the use
of dogs in coursing and badger baiting(Completed)
Completion of academy training around the legislation in regard to animal welfare and
in particular the procedures around seizure of any dogs used for poaching and
associated crimes. (Completed)
Community Enforcement Officers part of the established inform group for early
notification of any poaching in the Ryedale area (Completed)

Joint communications with the NYP, PCSO’s digital champions reporting on joint
initiatives (Completed)
Currently the Community Link Officers working directly with the PC’s in their patch
based areas jointly producing problem solving plans. (Completed)
Weekly multi-agency tasking meetings established with partner agency’s to include
NYFRS, NYP, Rough Sleeper Officer, Housing and Community Team. (Completed)

PRIORITY
identified and in
particular when
relating to
burglary
offences.

4.

To adopt a
collaborative
approach and
response to
tackling Rogue
Traders and
Cold-Callers

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES

LEAD


NYP/BS





Page 62



and professional resources to
vulnerable and problem areas.
To develop information and
intelligence streams with partner
agencies to fill gaps in our
knowledge of Victims, Offenders
and Locations.
To respond and deal robustly with
reports of cold callers in the
Ryedale Area.
To utilise our partners skills,
experience links and powers in
pursuing offenders and offences.
To work closely with Trading
Standards in sharing information on
rogue companies and traders who
exploit vulnerable and often
affluent communities in Ryedale.
To increase awareness of rogue
traders and cold caller offences
through social media and crime
roadshow campaigns. This can be a
collaborative venture

PROGRESS




Work with local residents and Parish and Town Clerks to feed intel to the relevant
authority around rouge traders. (Ongoing)
Working direct with trading standards around current issues (Ongoing)

LOCAL OUTCOME 6

RYEDALE ROADS ARE SAFE

PRIORITY 6

REDUCE ROAD TRAFFIC COLLISIONS

PRIORITY KEY
PRIORITY
1

Participate in
community
events

LEAD
NYFRS/RDC/NYP 

ACTIONS/ACTIVITIES
Have a very visible presence at all
community events/galas etc
themed winter checks and speed
awareness .

PROGRESS
Speed awareness and winter checks (Ongoing)

OUTCOME

Page 63

PARTNER PRIORITIES

Council Plan 2020-2024
https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/resources/council-plan/

Our communities: strong, inclusive and attractive
 Help for those in need
 Healthy and happy communities
 A place like no other – to live, work, visit and invest
Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to delivery growth, homes and job
 Quality homes local people can afford
 A connected rural economy
 Open for business
Our environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place
 A safe place to live
 Clean and attractive streets
 Sustainability into the future
Our organisation: an innovative, enterprising council
 A council that’s accessible to all
 Value for money
 A great place to work

Page 64

Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021:
https://www.northyorkshire-pfcc.gov.uk/police-crime-plan/priorities-north-yorkshire/

Caring about the vulnerable: We will have an in-depth understanding of how we can best protect the
most vulnerable people in our society and will invest in services, skills and partner relationships to
deliver the best possible outcomes.

Ambitious Collaboration: We will reach out to partners and drive innovation forward to enhance
policing, public protection, community safety and local justice services.

Reinforcing Local Policing: We will equip our people with the technology, skills, capacity and personal
support to prevent and tackle crime and reduce demand.

Enhancing the customer experience: We will embed an outward-facing perspective to guide all our
endeavours, providing an exemplary service that exceeds expectations, whether that be in serving
the public, shaping the organisation or working with colleagues and partners.

Page 65

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Plan 2019-2021
https://www.northyorkshire-pfcc.gov.uk/fire-rescue-plan/

Caring about the vulnerable: to provide services that will best protect the most vulnerable people in
our community and in doing so, make them safer

Ambitious collaboration: to maximise opportunities to work jointly with partners and to provide a
more effective, efficient and proactive community safety service

Realising our potential: to create an inclusive work environment and a positive, supporting culture
where we provide our people with the equipment, IT, training, skills, and capacity to effectively
prevent and respond to incidents

Effective engagement: to increase trust and public confidence in our Service, involving, engaging and
consulting our communities on the services we provide and delivering the best possible service

Page 66

North Yorkshire Community
Safety Partnership’s
Strategic Plan
2019 - 2022

Page 67

North Yorkshire County Council

Contents
Chair’s Foreword
Partnership Plan
Setting the Scene for North Yorkshire
North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
Community Safety Hubs

Membership and Statutory Functions
Membership
Statutory Functions
Domestic Homicide Reviews

Structure and Governance Arrangements
North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
Inter Board Network
Connected Partnerships

Page 68

Influencing Partners
Relationship between NYCSP and the Police and Crime Commissioner
Police and Crime Plan
North Yorkshire Youth Commission

Achievements (Previous Plan)
Partnership Development
Community Safety Hubs
Prevent
Domestic Abuse

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Chair’s foreword
It is my pleasure to introduce North Yorkshire Community Safety
Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2019-2022. Since becoming the chair
I have seen the partnership’s arrangements develop and grow. The
Partnership’s Plan demonstrates how organisations will work together
to tac kle issues, ensuring that our communities feel safe and have
confidence in those agencies delivering services to them.

‘Working together to make
North Yorkshire a safer place’
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a statutory duty on local authorities
to create multi-agency partnerships to tackle crime, disorder, anti-social
behaviour, substance misuse, other behaviour adversely affecting the local
environment and to reduce re-offending. The world of community safety
continually changes, and whilst tackling significant resource pressures,
the need for partners to work effectively together is essential.
Partnership working, community engagement and empowerment will
continue to be the key to tackling crime, disorder and feature significantly
within the strategy of North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership.

Emerging Issues
Serious and Organised Crime
Hate Crime and Community Cohesion
Adverse Childhood Experience (ACE)

Areas for Delivery and Development (2018-21)
Partnership Development
Community Safety Hubs
Domestic Abuse (including scoping sexual violence and trauma)
Serious and Organised Crime (early intervention and prevention)
Hate Crime and Community Cohesion

Dr Justin Ives - Chair of North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership
Chief Executive - Hambleton District Council

‘Causal’ Factors
‘Causal’ Factors (mental health, alcohol and drug issues

2

3

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Setting the Scene for North Yorkshire
Theft offences increased by 5%
(16,960 crimes in total)
Bicycle theft saw no overall percentage
change with 1, 171 crimes in total
Shoplifting increased by 2% (4,527 crimes in total)
Other theft offences up by 7% (4,580 crimes in total)
Criminal damage and arson up by
1% (5,940 crimes in total)
Vehicle offences up by 16% (2,492 crimes in total)

Page 69

Sexual offences increased by 24% (1,809
crimes in total). This rise is regarded as a positive
reflection of the confidence victims have in
North Yorkshire Police, particularly those making
historical complaints in the wake of high profile
historical sexual abuse cases, plus support from
dedicated facilitators for victims of sexual assault
Public order offences increased by
36% (1,962 crimes in total).

North Yorkshire Community
Safety Partnership
North Yorkshire is England’s largest county
and the third most sparsely populated. Just
over 600,000 people are resident across 3,103
square miles, stretching from Scarborough on
the east coast to almost the west coast, and
from the edge of Teesside to south of the M62.
In such a large and diverse county there are
challenges to delivering services, and demands
and pressures on these services are increasing.
North Yorkshire remains the safest place in England
despite official figures showing a 13% increase in
recorded crime. This was confirmed in the Office
of National Statistics (ONS) “Crime in England and
Wales, year ending September 2018” published
January 2019. It shows there were a total of 42,279
crimes in North Yorkshire during the 12 month
period, giving a crime rate of 51.6 per 1,000 of the
population. However it is still the lowest crime rate in
England with the national average standing at 85.7.

Broken down into the main crime categories, the
latest ONS figures for North Yorkshire show:
Miscellaneous crimes against society, which includes
the possession and publication of extreme sexual
images, decreased by 1% (753 crimes in total)
Burglary increased by 3% (3,718 crimes in total)
Theft from person up by 15% (472 crimes in total)
Drug offences increased by 7% (1,588 crimes in total)
Violence and against the person increased by
27% (12,776 crimes in total), which is broken
down into Violence with Injury (5,311 crimes
in total, a 13% increase); Violence without
Injury category (5,142 crimes in total, a 26%
increase); Harassment and Stalking (2,283
crimes in total, a 75% increase- this is a new
recording category hence the high percentage)

In accordance with the legislation, the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, six CSPs had operated across
North Yorkshire for a number of years. During 2014
the responsible authorities in the county agreed to
establish a single Community Safety Partnership,
to be known as North Yorkshire Community Safety
Partnership (NYCSP). There are a number of benefits
to have one single merged CSP these include;
clarity on the leadership of the community safety
agenda in North Yorkshire, and an opportunity
to align partnership priorities and arrangements
for improved multi-agency effectiveness.

Community Safety Hubs
Since the last partnership plan was developed,
partners in all seven North Yorkshire districts have
worked on increasing multi-agency collaboration
to tackle anti-social behaviour and crime affecting
communities, including the co-location of police,
district councils and other services in ‘Community
Safety Hubs’ in each area. Arrangements and
approaches vary across the districts, but common
ways of working within these hubs include:
The colocation of police, council and other staff
A common ‘matrix’ scoring form to
assess and agree referrals
Active multi-partner case management
Use of regular Multi Agency
Problem Solving techniques
Joint work on agreeing disposals.

General feedback and a number of hub
specific formal evaluations indicate significant
improvement in multi-agency working, better
co-ordination and better outcomes for some
individuals in our communities. North Yorkshire
Police commissioned a Public Health Registrar
to undertake a holistic evaluation across the
hubs considering activity, demand and impact.
Findings of that report will shape the partnership
plan and related objectives moving forward.
The evaluation report highlighted the
importance of multi-agency activity in each
local area, enabling the sharing of intelligence
linked to community safety and to instigate
appropriate responses at a local level.

Possession of weapons offences up
by 35% (295 crimes in total)
Robbery increased by 19% (195 crimes in total)

4

5

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Membership and
Statutory Functions

Structure and Governance
Arrangements

Membership

Statutory Functions

NYCSP

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a
statutory duty on local authorities to create multiagency partnerships to tackle crime, disorder,
anti-social behaviour, substance misuse, and
other behaviour adversely affecting the local
environment and to reduce re-offending.

Community Safety Partnerships are under
a statutory duty to work together to:

Each priority area is led by a partnership or a
CSP Joint Coordination Group (JCG) which is
responsible for championing positive outcomes
based on the agreed action plan and will
regularly report its progress to NYCSP.

CSPs’ membership must include
‘responsible authorities’:
Police
Local authorities

Page 70

Fire and Rescue Service
Probation
Health.

CSPs can work with any other local, relevant
partners. Membership of the NYCSP includes
the responsible authorities, including community
safety lead representation for all eight
councils. The partnership is chaired by a Chief
Executive of one of the district councils.
Each organisation brings its own expertise,
resources and understanding of the issues
that affect the local communities. Working in
partnership allows for initiatives that tackle both
the causes and effects of crime and anti-social
behaviour. It also reduces duplication of efforts
and risk of agencies taking conflicting actions.

Reduce reoffending
Tackle crime and disorder
Tackle anti-social behaviour.

Domestic Homicide Reviews
In addition to the above, CSPs also have a
statutory duty to undertake domestic homicide
reviews when the criteria are met. Under section
9(1) of the Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims
Act (2004), domestic homicide review means a
review of the circumstances in which the death
of a person aged 16 or over has, or appears to
have, resulted from violence, abuse or neglect by:
(a)

A person to whom he was related or
with whom he was or had been in an
intimate personal relationship, or

(b)

A member of the same household as himself,

(c)

Held with a view to identifying the lessons
to be learnt from the death.

A report will be produced annually outlining progress
against the partnership plan and will be presented
to North Yorkshire County Council Corporate and
Partnership Scrutiny Committee and the Police
and Crime Panel for North Yorkshire and York.

Inter Board Network
NYCSP will continue to maintain effective
relationships with other partnerships. An inter board
network in North Yorkshire has been established
where the managers of related partnerships
(CSP and Safeguarding Boards) regularly meet
to ensure agreed core principles are met. This
arrangement is to be extended to the Health
and Wellbeing Board for North Yorkshire:
Safeguarding is the business of all Boards

The Home Office Statutory Guidance (2016) states
“where a victim took their own life (suicide) and the
circumstances give rise to concern, for example
it emerges that there was coercive, controlling
behaviour in the relationship, a review should be
undertaken, even if the suspect is not charged
with an offence or they are tried and acquitted.”

The Boards are committed to developing a joined
up approach to assessing the effectiveness of
services and identifying priorities for change,
including where services need to be commissioned,
improved, reshaped or developed.

The network reports to its respective boards
and the Systems Leadership Group, where
the chairs of the partnerships across North
Yorkshire and York meet on a quarterly basis.

Connected Partnerships
NYCSP has had oversight and updates from
connected ‘community safety’ partnerships, this will
continue in the delivery of this partnership plan:
95 Alive (Road Safety North Yorkshire and York)
North Yorkshire Drug and Alcohol Partnership
Prevent Partnership Board (North Yorkshire and York)
Serious and Organised Crime Board
(North Yorkshire and York)
Business Development and Innovation Board
(Reducing Reoffending North Yorkshire and York).

The Boards will know each other’s business
A culture of scrutiny and challenge
will exist across the Boards
The Boards will work together to avoid
duplication and ensure consistency
At the heart of their decision making, the
Boards will remain focused on delivery that
benefits people in North Yorkshire
The Boards share a commitment to a strategic
approach to understanding needs including analysis
of data and engagement with stakeholders.

6

7

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Influencing Partners
Relationship between NYCSP and the
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner
The remit of the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner extends beyond the world of policing,
into crime prevention and engaging with those
agencies that have a major role in this. They are
under a duty to co-operate with the core agencies
that make up CSPs to reduce crime and disorder.

Police and Crime Plan

Youth Commission Priorities
North Yorkshire Youth Commission was established
in 2015 with funding from the Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC). The Youth Commission aims
to enable young people aged 14-25 to inform
decisions about policing and crime prevention in
North Yorkshire, working in partnership with the
PCC and North Yorkshire Police. Following a pilot
stage the Youth Commission identified priority areas
that they wish to tackle through their project:

Caring About the Vulnerable- We will have

Mental health and vulnerable young people

an in-depth understanding of how we can best
protect the most vulnerable people in our society
and will invest in services, skills and partnership
relationships to deliver the best possible outcomes.

Abusive relationships

Page 71

Ambitious Collaboration- We will reach
out to partners and rive innovation forward
to enhance policing, public protection,
community safety and local justice services.

Reinforcing Local Policing- We will
equip our people with the technology, skills,
capacity and personal support to prevent
and tackle crime and reduce demand.
Enhancing the Customer ExperienceWe will embed an outward-facing perspective to
guide all our endeavours, providing an exemplary
service that exceeds expectations, whether that
is serving the public, shaping the organisation
or working with colleagues and partners.

Hate crime
The relationship between young
people, police and authorities
Drug and alcohol abuse
Missing young people and exploitation.

Achievements
(Previous Plan Delivery Plan 2017/18)
Priority Areas for Delivery 2017/18

2.

1.

Partnership development

2.

Multi-Agency Community Safety Hubs

3.

Protecting Vulnerable People

We said we would implement the development
of all hubs across North Yorkshire via the
Community Safety Hub JCG. The plan included
identified work streams and named leads.

- Prevent
- Domestic Abuse.

1.

Partnership Development

We said we would ensure the structure,
roles and responsibilities of NYCSP
and related groups fulfil the CSP
statutory functions.
During 2017/18 the terms of reference for all groups
were reviewed and action was taken to rectify any
gaps. Strong links with other partnerships have
been maintained, including development of North
Yorkshire’s inter board network.

Community Safety Hubs

During 2017/18 community safety hubs in North
Yorkshire have been identified as “effective multiagency partnerships, dealing with complex
individuals with a high number of social risk
factors. A small but promising reduction in
demand suggests that further development
and investment in this model may yield
positive outcomes for individuals and partners
involved.” (Evaluation report- June 2018).

We said we would agree and deliver
relevant strategic priorities.
During 2017/18 NYCSP’s priorities were based
on relevant multi-agency information and analysis.
Agreed priorities have complimented the Police
and Crime Plan and those agreed by the Youth
Commission.

We said we would maintain an overview of
Community Safety Commissioned Services.
During 2017/18 a number of community safety
related services have been commissioned by
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
(OPCC). NYCSP and its structures have
had a key role in maintaining oversight and
scrutiny of the effectiveness of the services.

8

9

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Domestic Abuse
3.

Protecting Vulnerable People

Prevent (Counter- Terrorism and Security Act 2015to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism)
In the previous partnership plan ‘Prevent’
was identified as a priority area.
We said we would meet the Prevent
strategic objectives:
Responding to the ideological challenge
of terrorism and the threat we face
from those who promote it
Prevent people from being drawn into
terrorism and ensure that they are given
appropriate advice and support

Page 72

Work with sectors and institutions
where there are risks of radicalisation
that we need to address.

During 2017/18 a number of achievements
were made on the multi-agency
delivery of the Prevent agenda.
The Prevent Strategic Board has further developed
its governance structure to oversee Prevent delivery
both strategically and operationally at a local level.
During this period it was agreed that the overview
and scrutiny of the multi-agency delivery of the duty
is solely held by the Prevent Strategic Board. Regular
updates are provided to NYCSP. An agreed Prevent
Partnership Plan is in place and is being implemented.
Regular training events have taken place,
highlighting local arrangements including the
agreed processes in place for the referral of those
identified as being at risk of radicalisation and
the role of North Yorkshire’s Channel Panel.
A communications plan is in place to proactively
communicate and increase transparency of the
reality/ impact of Prevent work, and support
frontline staff to understand what Prevent looks
like in practice. ‘Notice, check and share’.

We said we would ensure the Domestic Abuse
JCG drove forward, through its multi-agency
representation, the agreed objectives of the
Domestic Abuse Overview Strategy (2014-18):
To coordinate services committed to early
intervention and prevention of domestic
abuse for adults, children and young people
To improve the safety of victims who
experience domestic abuse and support
them in rebuilding their lives
To coordinate and deliver interventions
for perpetrators to reduce reoffending
To work together to improve the equity and
consistency of services with committed
funding through effective partnership working.

During 2017/18 joint commissioning arrangements
for Domestic Abuse services, between City of
York Council, North Yorkshire County Council
and the Office of the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner have been firmly established. Retendering processes for services for victims and
perpetrators will start autumn 2018. Ensuring
service delivery is consistent across the area;
available resources are effectively used, with
the right services being available at the right
time. This has been successfully shaped by
a Domestic Abuse local needs assessment,
procurement strategy and commissioning plan.

We said the delivery of domestic abuse
services will be strategically managed by
the Domestic Abuse JCG, with the group
reporting directly to NYCSP and Safer York
Partnership, with effective connections with
other groups e.g. Safeguarding Boards.
During 2017/18 to enhance capacity, partners’
accountability and improve delivery, the governance
structure of the Domestic Abuse JCG has been
further developed. The Domestic Abuse JCG
is now underpinned by two multi-agency sub
groups. The Domestic Abuse Commissioning
Group oversees the commissioning of domestic
abuse services and management of performance
relating to those contracts. The Domestic Abuse
Operations Group oversees the multi-agency
operation that supports the delivery of domestic
abuse services e.g. MARAC and Making Safe,
drafts the domestic abuse strategy and oversees
the development and delivery of performance
management, reporting to the Domestic Abuse JCG.

During 2017/18 the processes and initial funding
for the statutory duty of undertaking Domestic
Homicide Reviews were further developed and
stabilised. Clarity on ensuring relevant reviews
are undertaken has been strengthened via the
inter board network. When Domestic Homicide
Review processes are instigated clear action
plans depicting lessons to be learnt with
measurable outcomes will be shared across
partners and partnerships. The plans will include
lines of accountability, to ensure multi-agency
practice is improved and a difference is made.

10

11

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

Emerging Issues
Serious and Organised Crime
Although Serious and Organised Crime (SOC)
is often thought of in a regional, national or
international context, its impact is most felt by
local communities. SOC is controlled by Organised
Criminal Groups (OCGs) that use intimidation
tactics and corruption for unlawful gain. Groups
can supply and distribute illegal drugs, commit
fraud, tax evasion and facilitate human trafficking.
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking can include:
Labour exploitation- being forced to work
long hours, often in hard conditions and to
hand over the majority, if not all of their wages.
Examples include car washes and nail bars

Page 73

Criminal exploitation- involving forcing victims to
engage in criminal activities such as cannabis
farming, forced begging, pickpocketing and
benefit fraud. This also includes ‘County Lines’
where gangs and organised crime networks
exploit children to sell drugs. Often these children
are made to travel across counties and they use
dedicated mobile phone ‘lines’ to supply drugs.

The national strategy for tackling SOC
is based on the ‘4P’s’ approach:
Prevent
To stop people becoming involved in SOC

9. Areas for Delivery and
Development 2019-2022
NYCSP has agreed the following priority areas for delivery:
Partnership development

Protect
To increase protection against SOC

Community Safety Hubs
Domestic Abuse (including scoping
Sexual Violence and Trauma)

Prepare
To reduce the impact of SOC

Serious and Organised Crime (early
intervention and prevention)

Pursue
To prosecute and disrupt those engaged in SOC.

Hate Crime and Community Cohesion
Hate Crime is any criminal offence committed
against a person or property that is motivated
by hostility towards someone based on their
disability, race, religion, gender identity or
sexual orientation. Whilst levels of recorded
hate crime are low, we have anecdotal evidence
from a range of agencies, including schools,
that the true extent may not be known.
Hate crime can happen in any community and can
have an impact on a range of community safety
matters. A multi-agency Hate Crime Working
Group already exists for North Yorkshire. By
adopting this as a priority area, NYCSP will have
oversight of this group and will ensure there is
a clear multi-agency action plan that supports
the delivery of awareness raising around Hate
Crime and effective reporting and action.

Hate Crime and Community Cohesion.

Partnership Development- Delivery Objectives
(lead North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership)
1.

To enhance knowledge across organisations
regarding strategic functions (Safeguarding Boards
and CSP) and at an operational level (Hubs,
MAST). With clarity on roles and responsibilities,
referral pathways and application of thresholds.

2.

To continually develop links with other relevant
partnerships, within the changing landscape of
Community Safety (e.g. Equality and Diversity
Partnerships). NYSCP to be continually informed
of emerging issues and ensure that partnerships
arrangements are challenged via the inter board
network. E.g. Partners have recognised further
work needs to be done around cybercrime.

4.

To enable NYCSP to become an effective
strategic, decision making partnership,
further development work is needed around
purpose, responsibilities and membership.
Effective performance frameworks to be
developed across the CSP structures to monitor
the effectiveness of the arrangements, including
the assurance that resources and funding are
being used in the agreed areas for delivery.

NYCSP to incorporate any learning e.g.
commissioned evaluations into future strategic
plans for community safety, and to build models
of local delivery centring on (and aiming to
increase) the current effectiveness of the hubs.

Community Safety Hubs- Delivery Objectives
(lead- Community Safety Hubs JCG)
1.

Local groups should be re-aligned covering
safeguarding and community safety, rather
than separate local groups for Safeguarding
Boards and CSP. It is recognised that will be
a number of cross cutting themes and the
same people attending the local meetings.

2.

In identifying local issues, Hubs should link
in with local initiatives. Harrogate team linking
in with Harrogate Vanguard arrangements to
enhance the local support arrangements for
mental health. Sharing of good practice in local
arrangements to be shared with partners via the
Community Safety Hub JCG and the CSP.

3.

The purpose of Local Delivery Teams (LDTs) to
be reviewed, to ensure both local and strategic
activity is linked with community safety hubs, in
shaping priority areas for delivery, performance
and potentially future commissioning.

4.

Each individual hub will use the data presented
in the evaluation report (and other relevant data),
to host local discussions on the variability in case
management, case mix and outcomes, in order
to determine what lessons can be learnt and what
changes to hub operations need to be made.

5.

The hubs will implement a more comprehensive
and ‘smarter’ use of all 3 risk categories on
the matrix referral form, with a formal and clear
referral and support pathways. (Examples
are given in the full evaluation report).

The recommendations from ‘Community Safety
Hubs in North Yorkshire and York- Evaluation of
activity, demand and impact’ (June 2018) are
incorporated within the delivery objectives.

3.

12

5.

13

North Yorkshire County Council

6.

7.

8.

The Community Safety Hub JCG will consider
how hubs can be supported to shift the balance
of intervention from enforcement to intervention.
This will include increasing the breadth of
softer ‘interventions’ available to the hubs.
As well as assessing and identifying where
possible antisocial problems may arise.

The agreed objectives that the Domestic Abuse
JCG, within its structure, will drive forward are:

In implementing the Case Management System
across the hubs, leads will standardise and
define what data is collected to drive ongoing
performance monitoring and implementation.
All partners to celebrate and publicise the success
of the hubs, highlighting the close multi-agency
working, promising outcomes so far and the
exceptional daily efforts of all staff within the hubs
to increase community safety in North Yorkshire.

Domestic Abuse- Delivery Objectives
(lead- Domestic Abuse JCG)

Page 74

The multi-faceted and complex nature of domestic
abuse means that it cannot be addressed by one
agency alone. Strong partnership arrangements
will help victims and those affected by domestic
abuse by providing an effective first response
to violence and abuse. The Domestic Abuse
JCG will drive forward the objectives and agreed
partnership vision within ‘North Yorkshire and
City of York Domestic Abuse Strategy’ (201822). With the vision statement being,

“Partner agencies across York
and North Yorkshire recognise
the negative impact that
domestic abuse has on families,
children and communities, and
are committed to providing
effective and consistent support
and interventions to meet the
needs of those affected.”

14

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

1.

To coordinate services committed to early
intervention and prevention of domestic abuse
for adults, children and young people

2.

To improve and deliver support to children and
young people who are affected by domestic abuse

3.

To improve the safety of victims who
experience domestic abuse and support
them in rebuilding their lives

4.

To coordinate and deliver interventions for
perpetrators to reduce reoffending

5.

To work together to improve the equity and
consistency of services with committed funding
through effective partnership working

6.

To empower those who remain in a relationship
with the values, attitudes and skills to remain safe

7.

To engage with communities to raise
awareness and build confidence to seek
advice and support when needed.

Sexual Violence
In developing its response to service needs for
domestic abuse, NYCSP has recognised that
there is further scoping required in understanding
the service needs for sexual violence, which
can be a component of domestic abuse.
Sexual activity when consent is not obtained
or not freely given is sexual violence. Sexual
violence can affect people of all genders, sexual
orientation and ages. It is connected to other forms
of violence and has serious consequences.

Serious and Organised Crime
(early intervention and prevention)Delivery Objectives (lead- ‘Prevent’
sub group of SOC Board)
The national strategy for tackling Serious
and Organised Crime (SOC) will be
based on the ‘4P’s’ approach:
Prevent
To stop people becoming involved in SOC
Protect
To increase protection against SOC
Prepare
To reduce the impact of SOC
Pursue
To prosecute and disrupt those engaged in SOC.
NYSCP will deliver on the Prevent arm, reporting
and linking in with the work of the SOC
Partnership Board. With the objectives of:

Intervention and Diversion
8.

Develop intervention activities, seeking
funding opportunities when appropriate

9.

Create network of third sector organisations
and partnership support.

These objectives will be delivered by developing
education and training for professionals and
communities and establishing clear pathways
for intelligence sharing and referring concerns.
Hate Crime and Community Cohesion
(lead- Hate Crime Working Group)
In 2016 the Home Office produced ‘Action Against
Hate- The UK Government’s plan for tackling hate
crime.’ Led by the Hate Crime Working Group for
North Yorkshire and York, the five areas reflected
in the Government’s action plan will be localised.
1.

Preventing hate crime by challenging the beliefs
and attitudes that can underlie such crimes.
Providing tools to tackle hatred and prejudice

Safeguarding

2.

Responding appropriately to hate
crime in our communities

1.

Protecting families affected by OCGs

3.

2.

Prevention of child criminal exploitation

3.

Prevention of criminal exploitation in vulnerable adults.

Increasing the reporting of hate crime through
improving the reporting process, encouraging
the use of third party reporting and working
with groups who may under-report

4.

Improving support for the victims of hate crime

5.

Building our understanding of hate
crime through improved data.

Education
4.

Provide referral mechanisms for partners

5.

Training opportunities to be developed for
workforce, including the voluntary sector

Initially via the Domestic Abuse JCG and
other related groups, including the inter board
network, scoping will commence on:

6.

Ensure young people, and those working
with young people know the signs of
someone becoming part of an OCG

1.

Identifying service needs and impact for those
that have sexual violence in North Yorkshire

7.

Clear communications plan to be developed.

2.

Developing an understanding of what
services are currently commissioned

3.

Identifying gaps in multi-agency service delivery
and to undertake the necessary action.

15

North Yorkshire County Council

Causal Factors
In developing the priority areas for delivery the
partnership has recognised there are significant
‘causal factors’ that have an impact on communities.
Namely, mental health, alcohol and drug related
issues. Although the partnership does not have
specific areas for delivery on these factors, their
influence on community safety cannot be minimised.
All partners need to ensure they are linked into
relevant strategies and activities, influencing and
challenging service provision to ensure the right
services are reaching the right individuals and groups.
Information and intelligence regarding need will
clearly come through the community safety hubs;
hubs must have effective links with local services.

Mental Health

Page 75

Public Health England’s (PHE) second edition of
the Health Profile for England provides the most
comprehensive look at the state of the nation’s
health in one place. PHE report that since 1993,
the prevalence of common mental health disorders
(CMD) in adults, which includes depression and
anxiety, have increased. In 2014, it was estimated
that 18.9% of adults aged 16-24 in England had at
least one common mental health disorder (CMD).
Health inequalities are present when it comes to
the prevalence of mental health problems between
population groups. In 2014, the prevalence among
females was greater than males (20.7% compared
with 13.2%). Overall, people of working were most
likely to have symptoms of CMD, although the
highest prevalence was among females aged 16
to 24 years. Unlike most physical health problems,
prevalence was lowest amongst the oldest age group.

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Plan 2018-2021

‘Hope, Control and Choice’ sets put a series
of commitments under three priorities- building
resilience, being responsive and reaching out to
users and partners. Commitments include:
Public health awareness raising campaigns
to tackle stigma and discrimination
Working through the county council’s stronger
communities programmes to introduce a
range of local wellbeing initiatives
New programmes to promote good mental
health from birth onwards to help children
and young people stay strong
Working with employers to promote good
mental health in the workplace
Improving access to “talking
therapies” in North Yorkshire
Timely diagnosis of dementia and the introduction of
dementia-friendly communities across North Yorkshire
Working in new ways in both health and social
care to take into account the full range of people’s
needs, including physical health; and
Bringing together annually North Yorkshire
mental health champions to share best
practice and to offer challenge.

Alcohol Harm

Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE)

In North Yorkshire the vast majority of people who
drink alcohol, do so responsibly. However around
a quarter of all people who drink are estimated to
be drinking at harmful or hazardous levels with 209
(2013-15) people dying each year as a result.

Since the mid 1990’s there has been increasing
international academic and policy interest in
better identifying and responding early to risk
factors in childhood and adolescence, as a
means to mitigate against problems in later life.
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) offers
one such example where early childhood trauma
is linked to negative outcomes on a range of
indicators in adulthood, spanning health, crime,
relationships, education and employment.

Alcohol misuse continues to be present in our
communities, putting additional pressure on
our emergency departments, police services
and damaging our neighbourhoods through
antisocial behaviour and violent crime.
North Yorkshire’s Alcohol Strategy 2014-19 was
developed by North Yorkshire County Council’s
public health team in partnership with local
borough and district councils; the county’s clinical
commissioning groups (CCGs); North Yorkshire
Police and the Police and Crime Commissioner
and Yorkshire Ambulance Services. The strategy
aims to galvanise partners to collectively
reduce the harms from alcohol. It is underpinned by three outcome areas, namely to:

“Exposure (to identified) ACEs has been associated
with poor health outcomes including substance
use, mental ill health…as well as unemployment
and continued involvement in violence… (and)
the impact of ACEs appear to be cumulative,
with risks of poor outcomes increasing with the
number of ACEs suffered.” (Mark A. Bellis 2014)

Establish responsible and sensible
drinking as the norm
Identify and support those who need help
into treatment through to recovery
Reduce alcohol related crime and disorder.

North Yorkshire’s Mental Health Strategy ‘Hope,
Control and Choice’ (2015-20), sets out for the first
time, a strategy to champion mental health and
well-being. It has been created by North Yorkshire’s
health and wellbeing board in partnership with
service users and professionals and draws on the
work of North Yorkshire County Council, the NHS,
North Yorkshire Police and voluntary sectors.

16

17

North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership’s
Strategic Plan 2019-2022
Contact us
www: nycsp@northyorks.gov.uk
www.nypartnerships.org.uk/nycsp

Page 76

78046 06/2019

Agenda Item 11

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ ANNUAL REPORT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The attached document is the External Auditor’s Annual Report for 2020/21.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the External Auditor’s Annual Report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The report gives the Council and independent view of how it is achieving Value for
Money

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Risks are taken into account as part of the annual audit and feed through into the
attached report.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 sets a requirement for auditors to be
satisfied that each local the authority has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

5.2

On 1 April 2020, a new Code of Audit Practice came into force which sets out how
local auditors are expected to approach and report their work on VFM arrangements
from 2020/21 onwards.

Page 77
OFFICIAL

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Statement of Accounts was presented to Committee in December 2021 and
approved in January 2022 after Policy and Resources had the authority to sign off the
accounts to the s151 Officer in consultation with the Chair of the Committee and all
Group Leaders (assuming there are no material changes after Audit Committee).
However this did not include the Annual Value for Money Report from the Auditors and
it was noted that this Report would be brought to Committee in the spring of 2022.

6.2

The Committee had previously been made aware of the significant challenges facing
public sector audit across the country and the impact this was having on deadlines.
The government has recently addressed this by suggesting further changes to the
timescales for signing off the 2021/22 accounts.

6.3

The Value for Money report is now attached here noting that there are no significant
weaknesses in financial sustainability, governance or improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness. There are some recommendations to assist the Council as it moves
towards LGR, particularly in respect of the need to maintain appropriate budgetary
controls in the run up to the end of RDC as a separate legal entity on 31 March 2023,
and also to ensure the ‘dual running’ of the plans for the new unitary North Yorkshire
council and the continuing work of RDC are appropriately planned and monitored.

6.4

Members of the committee will have the opportunity to ask the External Auditor and
s151 Officer about the detail at the meeting.

6.5

Following Audit Committee’s consideration of the Report, it will be made available to
all members at the next Full Council meeting.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There are no financial implications regarding this report.

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None arise from the contents of this report. Such implications are taken into
account as part of the budget process

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Page 78
OFFICIAL

Page 79

Commercial in confidence

Page 80

Commercial in confidence

Page 81

Commercial in confidence

Page 82

Commercial in confidence

Page 83
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 84

Commercial in confidence

•

•

Page 85

•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

Page 86

Commercial in confidence

Financial Challenges due to LGR

Page 87

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 88

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 89

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 90
•

•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Page 91

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 92

Commercial in confidence

Page 93

•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 94

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 95

Commercial in confidence

•

•

Page 96
•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 97

Commercial in confidence

Page 98

Commercial in confidence

Page 99

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 100

•

Page 101

Commercial in confidence

Page 102

•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 103

Commercial in confidence

Page 104
•
•
•

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

FORWARD PLAN 2022/23
Note:
Committee decisions (otherwise known as ‘Part A’ decisions) – these decisions must be taken by Elected Members, but can be dealt with at a Committee
level under delegated powers
Council decisions (otherwise known as ‘Part B’ decisions) – these decisions must be taken by Full Council

Page 107

Committee

Part Title of Item
A/B

Report Author

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

A

Appointment of Corporate Governance Standards Sub-Committee

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

External Audit Plan 2021/22

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2021/22

Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance
Grant Thornton, External
Auditor
Veritau

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report and Identification of Future
Topics

Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Progress on the Equalities Action Plan

Margaret Wallace, Programme
Director - People and Resources

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q4 2021/22

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Delivering the Council Plan – Key Performance Indicators for O&S
review

Steph Medcalf, Customer
Services Project Officer
Lynne Bayes, Strategy and
Performance Manager

Agenda Item 12

Date of
Meeting
June
23 June 2022

Page 108

Date of
Meeting

Committee

Part Title of Item
A/B

Report Author

23 June 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Everyone Active Annual Report

Amy Thomas, Economic
Development Manager.

September
1 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Health and Safety Annual Report 2021/22

Margaret Wallace, Programme
Director - People and Resources

1 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review
Letter 2021/22

Steph Medcalf, Customer
Services Project Officer

1 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q1 2022/23

Steph Medcalf, Customer
Services Project Officer

1 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Review of Workplan

Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance

28 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

A

Statement of Accounts 2021/22

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance
Officer (s151)

28 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Treasury Management Annual Report 2021/22

28 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Risk Management Update

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance
Officer (s151)
Margaret Wallace, Programme
Director - People and Resources

28 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report

Veritau

28 Sep 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

External Audit - Interim Audit and Progress Report

Grant Thornton, External
Auditor

October
27 Oct 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Progress on the Equalities Action Plan 2022/23

Margaret Wallace, Programme
Director - People and Resources

Page 109

Date of
Meeting

Committee

Part Title of Item
A/B

Report Author

27 Oct 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Treasury Management Mid Year Review

27 Oct 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Standards Complaints Overview and Annual Report

27 Oct 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

27 Oct 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Delivering the Council Plan - Key Performance Indicators for O&S
Review (if reqd)
Scrutiny Review Progress Report

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance
Officer (s151)
Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance
Lynne Bayes, Strategy and
Performance Manager
Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance

November
24 Nov 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

2021-22 Audit Findings (ISA260) Report

24 Nov 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Standards Complaints Overview and Annual Report

24 Nov 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q2 2022/23

January
19 Jan 2023
19 Jan 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au
Au

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report
Update on the use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
(RIPA)

Veritau
Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance

February
16 Feb 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Au

Risk Management Update

16 Feb 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

CIPFA Financial Management Code

16 Feb 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Safer Ryedale and Community Safety Plan

16 Feb 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q3 2022/23

16 Feb 2023

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Margaret Wallace, Programme
Director - People and Resources
Anton Hodge, Chief Finance
Officer (s151)
Bridget Skaife, Safer, Stronger
Communities Manager
Steph Medcalf, Customer
Services Project Officer
Lynne Bayes, Strategy and
Performance Manager

Delivering the Council Plan - Key Performance Indicators for O&S
Review (if reqd)

Grant Thornton, External
Auditor
Elizabeth Heath, Head of
Corporate Governance
Steph Medcalf, Customer
Services Project Officer

This page is intentionally left blank

